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NOTICE 49 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGis hereby given that the of the Members of Panasonic Energy India
Co. Ltd. will be held on Wednesday, September 22, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means for which purpose the Registered Of!ce of the Company situated at GIDC, Makarpura, Vadodara,
390010 - Gujarat, shall be the venue for the Meeting and the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting shall be
deemed to be made thereat, to transact the following businesses:

th

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the !nancial year ended March 31, 2021
and the Reports of the Board of Directors and theAuditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2021.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga (DIN 06792183), who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Rati"cation of Remuneration to CostAuditor

To consider and, if thought !t, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modi!cation(s) or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force), the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the payment of
remuneration of INR 1,40,000.00 (Rupees one lakh forty thousand only) plus applicable taxes, to
M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost and ManagementAccountants, Vadodara (Firm Registration No. 000339) appointed
by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
!nancial year 2021-22.”

5. Revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya, Chairman & Managing Director from
October 01, 2020

To consider and, if thought !t, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel),
Rules, 2014 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modi!cation(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to revise the terms of remuneration payable to
Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya (DIN: 08232012), Chairman & Managing Director of the Company with effect from
October 01, 2020 on the terms as to revised remuneration as set out in the addendum to the agreement made
between the Company on the one part and Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya on the other part the details of which are
given in the explanatory statement in respect of this item of the Notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to alter and vary the
terms and conditions of the appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee subject to the same not exceeding the limits speci!ed under
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modi!cation(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force).”

Registered Of"ce By Order of the Board
GIDC, Makarpura, Vadodara - 390 010 For Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
Gujarat, India
CIN : L31400GJ1972PLC002091 Susheela Maheshwari
e-mail: Company Secretarycompany.secretary@in.panasonic.com

Vadodara, June 16, 2021
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NOTES

1. In view of the continuing pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No.
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 read with General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and other
applicable circulars and Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, permitted the companies to conduct Annual
General Meeting (AGM) during the calendar year 2021 through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM) without physical presence of Members at the Registered Of!ce of the Company.

In accordance with the said circulars of MCA, SEBI and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing Regulations”), the 49 AGM of
our Company shall be conducted through Video Conferencing.

th

2. In compliance with the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 issued by MCA and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 issued by SEBI, owing to the dif!culties involved in
dispatching of physical copies of the !nancial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor's
report or other documents required to be attached therewith), such statements including the Notice of AGM
are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the
Depository Participant(s). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the
Company's website , website of stock exchange i.e. BSE Limited at

and on the website of Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, LinkIntime India
Pvt. Ltd. www.linkintime.co.in

www.panasonicenergyindia.in
www.bseindia.com

3. As per the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at theAGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and a proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

th

Members may kindly note that since the AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with, hence the facility for appointment of proxies will not be available
to the Members for attending the 49 AGM. Accordingly, the Proxy form and attendance slip are not
annexed to this Notice.

4. Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individual, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a
scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its Board resolution authorizing its representatives to attend and vote at the
AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 at company.secretary@in.panasonic.com

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

6. Since theAGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this notice.

7. The recorded transcript of the forthcoming AGM on Wednesday, September 22, 2021 shall also be made
available on the website of the Company as soon as possible after the Meeting
is over.

www.panasonicenergyindia.in

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Thursday, September 16, 2021 to Wednesday, September 22, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
determining payment of dividend.

9. Notes given in the Notice to the extent applicable also forms part of Explanatory Statement.

10. All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be available for
inspection through electronic mode from the date of circulation of notice till the date of AGM. Members
seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to company.secretary@in.panasonic.com

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available electronically for
inspection by the Members during theAGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email
to company.secretary@in.panasonic.com

12. Members seeking any information or clari!cation with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the
Company atleast TEN days in advance of meeting so that the required information can be readily available in
the Meeting.

13. The relevant information of the Directors seeking re-appointment, as required under Regulation 36(3) of the
Listing Regulations read with revised Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on General Meetings, is provided in N
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section relating to the Corporate Governance. Requisite declarations have been received from the Directors
for seeking re-appointment.

14. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Item No. 4 and 5
of the accompanying Notice is annexed hereto.

15. Dividend on Equity Shares as recommended by the Directors, if declared at this AGM, will be paid within a
period of 30 days from the date of declaration to those Members whose names appear on the Company's
Register of Members at the close of business on September 22, 2021.

16. Members holding shares in demat form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered with their
respective Depository Participants, with whom they maintain their demat accounts, will be used by the
Company for the payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents cannot act
on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in demat form for any change of bank
particulars. Such changes are to be intimated only to the Depository Participant(s) of the Members. Members
holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in their address and / or bank mandate
immediately to their Depository Participants.

17. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change of address and / or bank
mandate to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the Company requesting an
e-mail at In case, the Company is unable to pay the dividend to any shareholder
by the electronic mode, due to non-availability of the details of the bank account, the Company shall upon
normalization of the postal services, dispatch the dividend warrant to such shareholder by post.

vadodara@linkintime.co.in.

18. Shareholders are advised to encash their dividend warrants for the proposed Dividend for !nancial year
2020-21, if declared, within the validity period. Thereafter, the shareholders will have to request the Company
for issuing fresh / revalidated dividend warrants by writing to the Company along with their bank details.

19. Dividend payment

a) Members holding shares in electronic mode may please note that the dividend payable to them would be
paid through National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) at the available RBI locations. The dividend
would be credited to their bank account as per the mandate given by the Members to their Depository
Participants. In absence of availability of NECS facility, the dividend will be paid through warrants and
the bank details as furnished by the respective Depositories to the Company will be printed on their
dividend warrants as per the applicable regulations.

b) In respect of shares held in physical form, Members desirous of receiving dividend by way of direct credit
to their bank accounts through NECS may authorize the Company with their NECS mandate. The
shareholders desirous of obtaining the NECS mandate may download it from the website of the
Company at or may write to the Company Secretary at the registered
of!ce of the Company.

www.panasonicenergyindia.in

20. Unclaimed dividend

The Company has transferred the unclaimed dividend for the !nancial year 2012-13 to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. No claims shall be entertained against
the Company for the amounts so transferred. Members who have not encashed dividend warrant(s) for the
subsequent years are requested to contact Company Secretary at the registered of!ce of the Company, for
seeking issue of duplicate warrant(s). The details of the unpaid/unclaimed dividend as on
September 15, 2020 (the date of previous Annual General Meeting) are available on the Company's website
viz., and on the website of Ministry of CorporateAffairs at www.mca.gov.inwww.panasonicenergyindia.in

In case the Dividend has remained unclaimed in respect of previous !nancial years, the shareholders are
advised to approach the Company or the Registrar & Share TransferAgents of the Company.

21. As per Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF Rules as amended, all the shares in
respect of which dividend has remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more have been
transferred to the IEPFAccount.

22. In the event of transfer of shares and the unclaimed dividends to IEPF, members are entitled to claim the same
from IEPF by submitting an online application in the prescribed Form IEPF-5 available on the website
www.iepf.gov.in and sending a duly signed physical copy of the same to the Company along with the requisite
documents enumerated in the Form IEPF-5.
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23. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are required to submit their PAN to their Depository
Participants and Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.,
Vadodara (Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents) or to the Company Secretary at the registered
of!ce of the Company.

24. As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect fromApril 01, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form.

25. Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable to the shareholders w.e.f. April 01, 2020 and
the Company is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates.
For the prescribed rates for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance Act,
2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the Company / Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (in case of shares held in physical mode) and depositories (in case of shares held in
demat mode). A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit
a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G / 15H, to avail the bene!t of non-deduction of tax at source by visiting on
the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at
https://linkintime.co.in/formserg/submission-of-form-15g-15h.html latest by 5:00 p.m. IST on
September 15, 2021.

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, the tax will be deducted at a
higher rate of 20%. Non-resident shareholders can avail bene!cial rates under tax treaty between India and
their country of residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and
Bene!cial Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certi!cate, Form 10F, any other document which may be
required to avail the tax treaty bene!ts by visiting on the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at latest by 5:00 p.m
IST on September 15, 2021.

https://linkintime.co.in/formserg/submission-of-form-15g-15h.html

26. In view of the circular issued by SEBI dated April 20, 2018 ref: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73, it is
also mandatory to provide the Bank Mandate (Bene!ciary Bank name and Bene!ciary Account Number) on
the face of the Warrant / DD.

27. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the
Company are requested to update their email addresses by visiting on the website of Company's
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s . Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at
http://linkintime.co.in/EmailReg/Email_Register.html and upload the documents required therein.

28. Members are requested to notify immediately:

(a) Any change in their residential address.
(b) Income-tax PermanentAccount Number (PAN).
(c) Bank details - Name and address of the bank;A/c No.; type ofA/c.

29. Members holding shares in physical form and wishing to avail the nomination facility, are requested to send
the duly !lled in nomination form (Form SH-13) to Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents or to the
Company Secretary at the registered of!ce of the Company.

30. Members holding shares in more than one folio in the same order of name(s) are requested to send the details
of their folios along with the share certi!cates so as to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into
one folio.

31. The Company has created an exclusive e-mail Id: for quick redressal
of shareholders/investors grievances.

company.secretary@in.panasonic.com

32. Instructions for Shareholders/Members to attend the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet
(VC/OAVM) are as under:

1. Shareholders / Members are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM
provided by Link Intime by following the below mentioned process. Members can log in and join
30 (thirty) minutes prior to the schedule time of the meeting and window for joining shall be kept open till
the expiry of 30 (thirty) minutes after the schedule time. Participation is restricted upto 1000 members
only and will be available to the Members on !rst-come-!rst serve basis. N
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2. Shareholders / Members are requested to participate on !rst-come-!rst serve basis as participation

through VC / OAVM is limited and will be closed on expiry of 30 (thirty) minutes from the scheduled time
of the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders / Members with >2% shareholding, Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, KMPs, Chair Persons of Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors etc. may be allowed to
the meeting without restrictions of !rst-come-!rst serve basis.

3. Shareholders / Members will be provided with InstaMeet facility wherein Shareholders / Members shall
register their details and attend theAnnual General Meeting as under:

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the
same on the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully
and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on
the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMeet website.

Open the internet browser and launch the URL for InstaMeet: https:instameet.linkintime.co.in

Register with your following details:

Members holding shares in:-

CDSL :- 16 Digit Bene!ciary ID

NSDL :- 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

PHYSICAL :- Folio Number registered with  the Company

PAN :- Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP) / Company shall use the sequence number provided to you,
if applicable.

Mobile No. :- Enter your mobile number
Email ID: - Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP / Company.

Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked
for the meeting).

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Demat Account No. or Folio No.

ANNEXURE

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMeet, shareholders /
members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the Webex application
in advance by following the instructions as under:

a) P lease down load and ins ta l l t he Webex app l i ca t ion by c l i ck ing on the l ink
http://www.webex.com/downloads.html/

OR

b) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following

the process mentioned as under:
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Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.

1 (A)        If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on
Join Now

1 (B)       If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex
to chrome or Run a temporary application.

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe !le will be downloaded. Click on this exe !le to run the
application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now
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General Guidelines for VC / OAVM participation: -

a) Shareholders / Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets / Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience.

b) Shareholders / Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

c) Please note that Shareholders / Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Visual loss due to #uctuation in their network. It is
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

d) The Company reserves the right to limit the number of members asking the questions depending on the
availability of the time at theAGM.

e) The facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM will be opened 30 minutes before the scheduled start-time
of theAGM and will be available for the members on a !rst-come-!rst-served basis.

In case the Shareholders / Members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can write an email to
or Call us: - Tel : ( 022-49186175 )instameet@linkintime.co.in

InstaMeet Support Desk
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

33. Instructions for remote e-voting

Please refer EVENT Number: 210208

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations,
the Company is providing facility of 'remote e-voting' (e-voting from a place other than at the Annual General
Meeting) to its Members to exercise their right to vote at theAGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered
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into an agreement with Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of
casting votes by a Member using remote e-voting system as well as e-voting on the day of AGM will be
provided by Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

VOTING PERIOD

The voting period begins on September 19, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on September 21, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.
During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on September 15, 2021(cut-off date) may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled for voting thereafter.

The Members attending the meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be
able to exercise their voting rights at the meeting. The Members who have already cast their vote through
remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at theAGM.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access
e-voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode / physical mode is given below:
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Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

· If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the “Bene!cial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under
'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password.

· After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

· If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://esrvices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at

· Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under 'Shareholder/Member' section.Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP
and a Veri!cation Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

� Existing user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
au then t i ca t i on . The URL fo r use rs to log in to Eas i / Eas ies t a re
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login www.cdslindia.comor and click on New
System Myeasi.

� After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY,
LINKINTIME, CDSL. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote.

� If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistration

� Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESP where the E Voting is in progress.

www.cdslindia.com
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Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode) &
login through
their depository
participants

· You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSLfor e-Voting facility.

· Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option,
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Physical mode
& evoting
service Provider
is LINKINTIME.

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

▶ “Sign Up” 'SHARE HOLDER'Click on under tab and register with your following details:

A. User ID: physical form shall provideShareholders / members holding shares in
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP) / Company shall use the
sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with
your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP / Company.

· physical formShareholders / members holding shares in but have not recorded 'C'
and 'D', shall provide their Folio number in 'D' above

▶ Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters,
at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet
and at least one capital letter).

▶ Click “con!rm” (Your password is now generated).

2. Click on 'Login' under tab.'SHARE HOLDER'

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Veri!cation (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
'Submit'.

4 After successful login, you will be able to see the noti!cation for e-voting. Select
icon

. 'View'
.

5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
(If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the

!le link).
'Favour / Against' 'View
Resolution'

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour /Against, click on Acon!rmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to con!rm your vote, click on else to change your
vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote.

'Submit'.
'Yes',

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the
e-voting system of LIIPL at and register themselves ashttps://instavote.linkintime.co.in

. They are also required to upload a scanned certi!ed true copy of the board resolution /
authority letter / power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
representative(s) in PDF format in the login for the Scrutinizer to
verify the same.

'Custodian / Mutual
Fund / Corporate Body'

'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body'

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & e-voting service Provider is LINKINTIME,
have forgotten the password:

o Click on under tab and further Click'Login' 'SHARE HOLDER' 'forgot password?'

o User ID, Mode 'Submit'.Enter select and Enter Image Veri!cation (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on

� In case shareholders / members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered
e-mail address.

� Shareholders / members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the

Institutional shareholders:
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Login type

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at or call at toll free
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

evoting@nsdl.co.in

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-23058542-43.

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Institutional shareholders &
evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME.

In case shareholders / members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries
regarding e-voting, they may refer the and
available at under section or send an email to
or contact on: - Tel: 022 –4918 6000.

Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs') InstaVote e-Voting manual
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in enotices@linkintime.co.inHelp

InstaVote Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

34. Instructions for e-voting during theAnnual General Meeting:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer during the meeting, shareholders / members
who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

2. Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number /
registered email id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on 'Submit'.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option
“Favour /Against” for voting.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour / Against” as desired. Enter the number
of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour /Against'

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour /Against as desired and you have decided to vote,
click on “Save”. A con!rmation box will be displayed. If you wish to con!rm your vote, click on
“Con!rm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi!es in demat mode:

In case shareholders / members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

particulars of the Security Question andAnswer, PAN, DOB / DOI, BankAccount Number (last four digits) etc.
as mentioned above.

� The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL / CDSL have forgotten the
password:

Shareholders / members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

Ø It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password con!dential.

Ø For shareholders / members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Ø During the voting period, shareholders / members can login any number of time till they have voted on
the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.
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6. Once you con!rm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote

subsequently.

The Board has appointed Mr. Vijay Bhatt, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F4900,
COP No. 2265), as Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in accordance with the law and in a
fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting and e-voting on the date of theAGM, in the presence of at least two witnesses
not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the
Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith
to the Chairman of the Company or any person authorized by him in writing and the Results shall be
declared by the Chairman or any person authorized by him thereafter.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the website of the
Company and on the website of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
immediately after the declaration of Result by the Chairman or any person authorized by him in writing.
The results shall also be forwarded to the stock exchanges where the shares of Company are listed.

www.panasonicenergyindia.in.com

35. Instructions for Shareholders / Members to register themselves as Speakers during Annual General
Meeting:

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client
ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at from September 01, 2021
(8:00 a.m. IST) to September 15, 2021 (5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a
speaker will only be allowed to express their views / ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the
right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for theAGM.

company.secretary@in.panasonic.com

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of theAudit Committee, approved the appointment
and remuneration of M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost and ManagementAccountants, as CostAuditor to conduct the audit of
the cost records of the Company for the !nancial year ending on March 31, 2022.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of The Companies
(Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the CostAuditor is to be rati!ed by the Members of the
Company. Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
!nancial year 2021-22 as set out in the Resolution for the aforesaid services to be rendered by them.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the passing of this resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof has any concern or interest, !nancial or
otherwise in the resolution at the Item no. 4 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Hosoya aged 49 years, having DIN: 08232012, completed his graduation in economics from Keio University,
Tokyo, Japan in March 1995. He has been associated with Panasonic since 1995 and is having vast experience in
Sales and Marketing for more than two decades. Mr. Hosoya was appointed as Vice President (Sales and
Marketing) of the Company from June 01, 2018 and from September 01, 2018, he was working as the Executive
Director of the Company. Looking to his performance Mr. Hosoya was further elevated as Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company w.e.f.April 01, 2020 for a period of two (2) years.

The appointment of Mr. Hosoya, Chairman & Managing Director along with his terms of remunerations has already
been approved by members at its 48 Annual General Meeting held on September 15, 2020.

th

The Board upon recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on
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November 05, 2020, revised the remuneration payable to Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya, Chairman & Managing Director
of the Company with effect from October 01, 2020.

Speci!c approval of the Members by way of special resolution is now sought for the revision in remuneration of
Mr. . The terms and conditions proposed are keeping in line with the remuneration package that is
necessary to encourage good professional with a sound career record to important position as that of the
Chairman & Managing Director.

Hosoya

Mr. Hosoya has attended all the board meetings held during the year.

There isno change in his termsofappointmentexcept increase in salaryand perquisiteswhich are detailed below.

The Board accordingly recommends the passing of the Resolution at Item No.5 of the accompanied notice.

The remuneration to Mr. Hosoya has been paid as per following methods:

A. Salary

Except Mr. Hosoya, who is appointee under this resolution none of the other Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and relatives thereof, are concerned or interested !nancially
or otherwise, in the resolution at the Item No. 5 of this Notice.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the passing of this resolution.

Any member desirous of having inspection of the Agreement referred to in the resolution may do so
on any working day during of!ce hours upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

vi. Other bene!ts shall be as per the Personnel Services Companion – Overseas Personnel Affairs
Volume issued by Panasonic Corporation and as amended from time to time.”

v. Twelve calendar days leave (twice in a year) on full pay. However, no encashment of leave shall be
permitted at the end of the tenure.

b. Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of
service as per the provisions of the Payment of GratuityAct, 1972;

a. Contribution to Provident Fund, if any;

iv. Following perquisites shall not be included in computation of the ceiling on perquisites speci!ed
here in above.

iii. Gas, electricity and water

ii. Use of Chauffeur driven company car

i. FurnishedAccommodation

B. Perquisites:

*(Tax allowance may vary as per the actual tax liability borne by Company on the salary as per the provisions of
Income TaxAct, 1961)

Registered Of"ce By Order of the Board

GIDC, Makarpura, Vadodara - 390 010 For Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.

Gujarat, India

CIN : L31400GJ1972PLC002091 Susheela Maheshwari

e-mail:company.secretary@in.panasonic.com
Company Secretary

Vadodara, June 16, 2021

Sr. No. Particulars Net Increment

1

2

3

Basic Salary

Special Allowance

*Tax Allowance

Total

67,303.00

1,57,042.00

1,29,000.00

3,53,345.00

w.e.f. 01-Apr-20
Per month (Present)

w.e.f. 01-Oct-20
Per month   (Proposed)

1,75,330.00

4,09,102.00

3,01,200.00

8,85,632.00

2,42,633.00

5,66,144.00

4,30,200.00

12,38,977.00
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have great pleasure to report you at the end of another challenging year, and presenting the
49 annual report together with the audited !nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

th

1. Financial Results Summary (INR in Lakhs)

2. Transfer to Reserve

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve out of the amount available for
appropriation.

3. Dividend

Keeping in view the current pro!tability of the Company, your Directors are pleased to recommend payment
of dividend of INR 8.00 per equity share (@ 80% at par value of INR 10.00 each) (previous year INR 4.00 per
equity share), subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
dividend, when approved, will entail payment to shareholders of INR 600.00 lakhs. It will be tax free income in
the hands of recipients till the amount of dividend does not exceed INR 5,000.00.

4. Operational Review

The !nancial year 2020-21 turned out to be good and positive for the battery industry for most of the year. The
year started on a weaker note under nationwide lockdown due to the COVID-19. However, immediately on
relaxation of the lockdown the demand for batteries took an upward trend w.e.f. May, 2020 across the
categories except rechargeable batteries.

In the above situation during the year, your Company registered net sales amount of INR 23,235.49 lakhs as
against INR 20,353.14 lakhs of the previous year.

The pro!t before tax in the year stood at INR 1,398.58 lakhs as against INR 519.56 lakhs in the last year.

Batteries and Flashlights

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, post lockdown there was a sudden surge in demand of dry batteries due
to the WFH, on-line study and increase in usage of medical appliances etc. In theAAsegment overall demand
was good, though the sales was driven by the economy segment. However, in the AAA segment the demand
surpassed the supply due to sudden surge in existing appliances demand and new equipment's coming in the
market. The D size demand was more or less stagnant.

Flash light market continued to have normal demand for the economy range of 3-cell and 2-cell LED torches.
The cost of sourcing also increased due to increase in RM costs, due to which your Company witnessed
shrinking returns in margins and has decided to discontinue its sourcing and sales fromApril, 2021 onwards.

Prospects

The prospect for Zinc Carbon dry batteries demand seems to be very encouraging during the coming years,
one of the reason being surge in demand for made in India batteries in the AA and AAA segment. Secondly, it
is foreseen that many other industries such as electronic, TV, AC and set-top manufacturing companies are
likely to add to their production capacities and shall rely more on local make batteries vs. the Chinese
batteries, which is likely to prove bene!cial to Indian manufacturers.

Particulars

Sales Turnover
Pro"t/(Loss) before tax
Less: Provision for taxation (Net of deferred tax)
Pro!t/(Loss) after tax
Add: Pro!t brought forward from previous year

Net available surplus for appropriations

Dividend paid during the year

Dividend Distribution Tax paid

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

20,353.14

519.56
204.36
315.20
983.36

1,298.56

300.00

61.67

936.89

1,298.56

Appropriations

23,235.49

1,398.58
366.14

1,032.44

1,969.33

300.00

0.00

1,669.33

1,969.33

936.89
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Your Company has performed well and has registered a double digit growth vs previous year.

5. Change in Nature of Business

As reported last year, there is no material change in the business.

6. Product Pro"le

The Company, with its market share of about 15% plus in Zinc dry batteries, will continue to focus its
expansion into various other product range to leverage its overall sales quantity and turnover viz.
Rechargeable batteries under the brand name of 'Eneloop', range of Alkaline batteries, Lithium coins.

Your company has now launched the world's best premium Alkaline AA/AAA 20 times longer lasting
EVOLTA batteries now in India, keeping in mind the customer needs for longer lasting batteries for their
smart appliances and requirement to reduce the impact on environment.

7. Management Discussion andAnalysis

Business Overview

India's pace and policies continue in the direction, as the fastest growing major economy in the world and is
expected to be one of the top three economic powers of the world over the next decade, backed by its strong
democracy and partnerships.

The dry batteries demand is likely to !nd new segments in view of the new emerging life styles, which shall
require Zinc Carbon, Alkaline, Lithium coins, rechargeable batteries and your Company has the best
resources to penetrate in the Indian market's evolving need with the collaboration of Panasonic
Corporation, Japan.

Zinc Carbon batteries

Zinc Carbon batteries share of organized manufacturers is estimated to have remained same with some
minor #uctuations.

The market size witnessed a growth across categories, though the AAA sales shot up beyond the
expectations. Maintaining its trend in !nancial year 2020-21 also,AAsize continues to dominate the volume
share and AAA size promises a very positive growth in future.

Alkaline batteries

Battery industry in India is dominated by Zinc Carbon batteries, unlike in other parts of the world which is
dominated by Alkaline battery market. Alkaline is a category which is continuously showing an uptrend and
indicates good future growth. Your company registered a growth YOY in this sector.

Your company to latch on to this growth has launched their premium range EVOLTA in India to cater to the
consumer's demand and reduce the dent on the environment due to its 20 times more longer lasting feature
as compared to standard Zinc Carbon Batteries.

Your Company envisages a sizeable business in the forthcoming year in this segment.

Flashlights

Flashlight market continues to be shared equally by organized and unorganized sectors. Rechargeable
torches are improving their presence and are a considerable threat to LED torch segment. Another aspect
stalling the growth of this segment is the continuously improving electri!cation across the country, hence
reducing the usage of portable torches as well as the rising costs of raw materials post pandemic which has
led to a dent on the margins and makes the business non-pro!table.

In view of the above developments, your company has decided to move out of this segment after liquidation
of their inventories. The procurement of models was stalled effective from January, 2021.

Rechargeable batteries

Rechargeable battery market contributes around 1% to total battery demand. This segment is dominated by
imported low priced rechargeable batteries.

Your Company has successfully marked its presence in marketing and sales of high quality “ neloop” brand
of rechargeable batteries and chargers.

E

Dealers and consumers appreciate the quality and superiority of our rechargeable batteries. Your Company
maintained its share in this category.

49th Annual Report

2020-21
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Lithium coin batteries

The Lithium coin batteries usage in various applications is on the growth path in India. Your Company has
introduced new models in this segment over last couple of years to serve the consumer needs and registered
a signi!cant revenue growth.

Industry Structure and Development

Organized battery industry is maintaining the overall reduced demand of R20 and R14 segment in absence of
new applications / appliances which consume these segments of products.

In view of market stagnation for these categories and not much hope of demand upsurge in the domestic
market as well as very marginal pro!ts from both these product lines, your company has decided to stall the
production of R20 and R14 production post March 31, 2021.

However, the Company foresees positive growth in the AAA segment in lieu of the gadgets using AAA
batteries, replacing usage of AA batteries. A steady shift towards alkalization of Indian market is also likely to
bene!t in the years to come. The Company also witnessed growing trend of other categories of rechargeable,
cylindrical and lithium coin batteries.

Marketing and Distribution

The Company has also taken many steps to enhance its customer reach and widen its distribution and
coverage. In the modern trade segment also, your Company has initiated activities to expand its presence in
the market.

Your Company has been continuously making efforts not only to strengthen its distribution network but also
concentrating on improving the productivity of every member of its sales team through various training and
educational programs.

Your Company will also continue its efforts to promote the brand “PANASONIC” and its products through
various channels of advertising and publicity for enhancing consumer awareness and its advantages over
competition.

Your company has introduced EVOLTA -premium Alkaline batteries in India during the year with TVCM and
OTT advertisements with attractive tag lines “Battery Ka King “and “20 times longer”. Aggressive distribution
of this product is also planned by targeting existing and new outlets.

Opportunities and threats

Opportunities

Presently, per capita consumption of batteries in India continues to remain low as compared with other
developed countries. Batteries are the cheapest source of portable power and its consumption is always
expected to grow as it is a product of recurring use. Changing usage patterns, arrival of new appliances, shift
towards miniaturization of appliances, growing income levels and changing life styles, WFH and online
education is likely to trigger growth especially inAA/AAAsize of batteries.

Threats

The stronger dollar, increasing logistic costs, spiraling !xed costs, #uctuating zinc prices, shipping and
customs clearance issues post pandemic continue to give some uncertainty to the overall pro!tability. It not
only exerts more pressure on the pricing of economy range of batteries but also augments price competition
giving lower operating margins.

Like the whole world, your Company has also been dealing with the COVID-19 crisis. The time tested ways of
working have to be modi!ed time and again in order to prioritize the health and safety of our employees. Like
all other manufacturing organizations, maintaining the speed of production to meet the market demand while
ensuring adherence to the precautionary safety measures and mandates has been a tight-rope walk.
However, with the focus !rmly on one of our core principles - Contribution to Society, we have been dealing
with and tackling every new challenge that comes our way in order to ensure that the consumers do not face
any inconvenience due to shortage in supply.

Risks and Concerns

During FY 2020-21, the purchase prices of major materials have remained upward vs. FY 2019-20. The
average purchase prices of Zinc, EMD, NMD, ACB, Metal jackets, PVC, Corrugation packaging &
components, Zinc chloride etc. stayed higher in FY 2020-21 by around 103% to 130%, which have not only
affected the direct materials cost but also severely disrupted estimates on pro!ts. Besides, the weakening of
INR vs. USD & tremendous increase in freight charges has caused additional burden on the imports.
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Outlook

The current trend of battery usage pattern in India is gradually moving in line with global trend. It is a positive
sign and !rst step towards moving up with the global per capita consumption which at present is much higher
than the per capita consumption in India. We also hope that the Indian consumers shall gradually move
towards higher end of batteries such as Alkaline, Lithium coin and Rechargeable batteries which shall
generate additional revenues for your Company and strengthen its revenues in the coming years.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has an internal !nancial control system commensurate with the size and scale of its
operations. These controls are adequate and operating effectively so as to ensure orderly and ef!cient
conduct of business operations.

The internal staff monitors and evaluates the adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its
compliances with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.
Based on the reports, the Company undertakes corrective actions, thereby strengthening the controls.
Signi!cant observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to theAudit Committee for its review.

Development in the Human Resource and Industrial Relation

The Board wish to place on record its appreciation to all its employees for their sustained efforts and valuable
contribution. Your Company is very much concerned for the employees so as to provide them with safe and
accident free environment with a motto “Safety First” at the work place. The total employee strength of the
Company as on March 31, 2021 stood at 801.

Details of signi"cant changes in key "nancial ratios

* Debtors turnover has effected due to decrease in Industrial sales due to COVID-19.

* Operating pro!t margin has gone up due to increase in Sales Turnover as well as reduction in material cost.

* Net pro!t margin has gone up due to reduction in overheads.

* Return on Net worth has improved due to increase in pro!t.

Research & Development

In order to comply with the guidelines provided by Panasonic Corporation regarding supply of our products to
overseas market and contributing towards environment protection, your Company is using all the raw
materials complying with latest RoHS norms by removing heavy metals and phthalates from batteries,
components and all materials. Your Company has installed new blister pack machine (R03 line) to improve
the packing of batteries for supply to domestic customers as well as to overseas customers. This will not only
help to increase its exports by qualifying to international standard and new look for better display value in
market.

8. Material changes and Commitments

There is no such material change and commitment, affecting the !nancial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the !nancial year ended on March 31, 2021 and the date of the report.

Ratio analysis

*Debtors Turnover

Inventory Turnover

Interest Coverage Ratio

Current Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio

*Operating Pro!t Margin(%)

*Net Pro!t Margin (%)

*Return on Net Worth

Sr. No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2020-21

4.04 times

10.58 times

-

3.40 times

-

4.35%

4.37%

9.73%

49th Annual Report

2020-21

2019-20

5.75 times

8.54 times

-

3.46 times

-

0.64%

1.52%

3.19%
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During the year under review as part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), and
considering the global pandemic situation, the Company has focused its activities and participated in the
projects in the areas of health, hygiene and medical undertaken by various NGOs and Trusts for treatment of

9. Corporate Governance

As per requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred as “Listing Regulations”) a separate section on corporate governance practices followed
by the Company, together with a certi!cate from the Company Secretary in Practice con!rming compliances,
forms an integral part of this Report.

10. Annual Return

A copy of Annual Return as required under the Companies Act, 2013 has been placed on the Company's
website viz.https://panasonicenergyindia.in

11. Board Meetings

Schedules of Board and Committee meetings are prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During
the year, four Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The details of
which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and General Circular No. 11/2020 dated
March 24, 2020.

12. Directors' Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,
your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the CompaniesAct, 2013;

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021 the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the pro!t and loss of the Company for the year
ended on March 31, 2021;

(c) that the Directors had taken proper and suf!cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) that the Directors had laid down internal !nancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal !nancial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

13. Contracts andArrangements with Related Parties

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were in the ordinary course of business
and on arm's length basis. Further, there are no material related party transactions during the year and thus a
disclosure in FormAOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of theAct is not required.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Omnibus approval was
obtained on a yearly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature. The policy on related party
transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been uploaded on the website of the Company viz.
https://www.panasonicenergyindia.in

14. Conservation of Energy, TechnologyAbsorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are
annexed herewith. (Ref. “Annexure-A”)

15. Risk Management

The Company has framed a risk management policy containing the elements of various risks and
implementation strategy to mitigate those risks. The risk management framework is reviewed periodically by
the Board.

16. Corporate Social Responsibility
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Covid-19 patients. These projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

During the year, Company’s obligation toward its CSR Policy INR 20,36,314.00, and the Company had
distributed INR 16,48,117.00 to two outside implementing agencies operating in the area of health care. The
balance amount INR 3,88,197.00 remained unspent due to unintentional short provision noticed during the
year end audit. It will be transferred to government fund noti!ed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013
before September 30, 2021 as per recent amendment made effective from January 22, 2021.

TheAnnual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith. (Ref. “Annexure-B”)

The Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013.

17. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal)Act, 2013

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment.All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

18. Annual Evaluation by the Board

During the year, no complaint was received by the Company and hence, no complaints are outstanding as on
March 31, 2021 for redressal.

19. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees and the same has been
communicated to the Directors and employees of the Company. The vigil mechanism policy / whistle blower
policy is also posted on the website of the Company.

20. Directors

Appointment / Re-appointment

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga (DIN 06792183), will retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

The Company had received declarations from all Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements of Listing
Regulations.

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Committees of the Board and
individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. The
Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

As required by Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations, the relevant details in respect of the Directors
proposed to be appointed / re-appointed are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the
Board's Report. The Board recommends all the resolutions placed before the members relating to
appointment / re-appointment of Directors for their approval.

The Board of Directors have the following Committees:

1.Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings held and attendance at the
meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

22. StatutoryAuditors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at the 45 Annual General Meeting held on
August 10, 2017, the shareholders had appointed M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 years i.e. up to the conclusion of 50 Annual General
Meeting to be held for the adoption of accounts for the !nancial year ending March 31, 2022. As the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 has done away with the requirement of rati!cation at every Annual
General Meeting, no rati!cation for the appointment is required. There is no quali!cation or adverse remark in
Auditors' report.

th
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23. CostAuditor and CostAudit Report

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost and Management Accountants,
have been re-appointed as the Cost Auditor for the !nancial year 2021-22. In terms of the provisions of
Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be rati!ed by the Members of the Company. Accordingly,
the Board seeks rati!cation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the !nancial year 2021-22.

24. SecretarialAuditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. J. J. Gandhi & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the !nancial year
2021-22. There is no quali!cation or adverse remark in their report. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is
annexed herewith. (Ref. “Annexure-C”)

25. Subsidiaries

Your Company does not have any subsidiary / subsidiaries within the meaning of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any !xed deposits and accordingly no amount was outstanding as on the
date of the Balance Sheet.

27. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under Section 186 of the CompaniesAct, 2013

There are no loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

26. Deposits

28. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

As per Section 124(6) of the Act read with the IEPF Rules as amended, all the shares in respect of which
dividend has remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more have been transferred to an
IEPFAccount.

During the year, the Company has transferred 4961 number of shares to the IEPFAuthorityAccount.

29. Disclosure under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

30. Nomination & Remuneration Policy

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel are in
accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration policy. The above policy has been posted on the website
of the Company viz.https://www.panasonicenergyindia.in

31. Compliance with all the applicable laws of Secretarial Standards

During the year, the Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards.

32. Signi"cant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts

No signi!cant and material order has been passed by the regulator, court, tribunal, statutory and quasi-
judicial body impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

33. Acknowledgment

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by employees at all levels to
the continued growth and prosperity of your Company. Your Directors also wish to place on record their
appreciation to the shareholders, dealers, distributors, consumers and banks for their continued support.

Your Directors regret the loss suffered due to the COVID-19 pandemic and are always grateful and have
immense respect for every person who risked their life and safety to !ght this pandemic.

Disclosures required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 have been annexed herewith.
(Ref. “Annexure-D”)

For and on behalf of the Board

Vadodara

Tadasuke Hosoya

June 16, 2021

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 08232012
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“Annexure-A” to the Board's Report

1. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

(A) Conservation of energy

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
Ø Compressed ir wastage due to leakage encountered, this resulted into saving of compressed

air consumption by 15% due to various counter measures taken.
a

Ø Electrical lighting load reduction by switching over in various lighting system to LED type.
Ø Replacement of existing reciprocating compressor by energy ef!cient screw compressor.
Ø Replacement of LED Tube lights in place of #orescent tube lights.
Ø Replacement of two old acuum pumps by new rotary screw type acuum ump.v v p
Ø Replacement of various energy ef!cient equipment's for conservation of electrical energy &

thereby reduce CO emission to environment.2

Ø Existing hree window type ir onditioner replaced by new energy ef!cient split type ir
conditioners.

t a c a

Ø CO emission was reduced by 103 on/year by taking various energy conservation measures at
Vadodara and Pithampur plants.

2 t

(ii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments;

Ø Capital investment done on energy conservation equipment's is to the tune of 45.3 lakhs.INR 0

(B) Technology Absorption

The efforts made
towards technology
absorption

1. Environment friendly raw materials and components used for mass production of
dry batteries and thereby contributed to society.

2. Utilized natural resources to optimum level and thereby reduced consumption of
natural resources without compromising the quality.

3. Efforts are made to increase the recyclability of the waste generated during
manufacturing activities.

4. Optimum utilization of natural resources without compromising the quality.
5. Installed new VAchecker machine with auto management system on R03 line.
6. Installation new blister pack machine (R03 line) to improve the packing of

batteries for supply to domestic customers as well as to overseas customers.
7. Installation of R6PVC new sealing line in the view of better quality and

productivity and to enhance product safety.

1

The bene!t
derived like
product
improvement, cost
reduction, product
development,
import substitution 4. Optimum utilization of natural resources without compromising the quality.

5. Installed new VAchecker machine with auto management system on R03 line.
6. Installation new blister pack machine (R03 line) to improve the packing of

batteries for supply to domestic customers as well as to overseas customers.

7. Installation of R6PVC new sealing line in the view of better quality and

productivity and to enhance product safety.

3. Efforts are made to increase the recyclability of the waste generated during
manufacturing activities.

2. Utilized natural resources to optimum level and thereby reduced consumption of
natural resources without compromising the quality.

1. Environment friendly raw materials and components used for mass production of
dry batteries and thereby contributed to society.

2

T h e e x p e n d i t u r e
incurred in Research
and Development.

INR 142.34 lakhs3

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign Exchange Earned

Foreign Exchange Outgo

INR 68.04 lakhs

INR 5372.35 lakhs

1

2

For and on behalf of the Board

Vadodara

Tadasuke Hosoya

June 16, 2021
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08232012
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“Annexure-B” to the Board's Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company.

CSR is the process by which we think about and evolve our relationships with stakeholders for the
common good and demonstrate our commitment in this regard by adoption of appropriate business
processes and strategies. We use CSR to integrate economic, environment and social objectives with the
Company's operations and growth.

Our social vision has been enshrined in the three which have become the guiding principles of our CSR
initiatives Education, Empowerment and Health, and Environment.

E’s

2. Composition of the CSR Committee of the company:

Sr.

No.
Name of Director

Designation / Nature

of Directorship

Number of meetings

of CSR Committee

held during the year

Number of meeting

of CSR Committee

attended during the year

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Chairperson

(Independent Director)

Member

(Chairman & Managing

Director)

Member

(Non- Executive Director)

1

2

3

1

1

1

1

1

1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR www.panasonicenergyindia.in
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by

the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 Not Applicable
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance Not Applicable
of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the !nancial year, if any

SI.

No
Financial year Amount available for set-off from

preceding !nancial years (in INR)

Amount required to be setoff

for the !nancial year, if any (in INR)

6. Average net pro!t of the company as per section 135(5). INR 10,18,15,667.00

7. (a) Two percent of average net pro!t of the company as INR 20,36,314.00

per section 135(5):

(b)   Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil

Programme or activities of the previous !nancial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the !nancial year: Nil

(d) Total CSR Obligation for the !nancial year (7a + 7b - 7c): INR 20,36,314.00

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Total Amount Spent
for the Financial
Year. (in INR)

16,48,117.00

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as
per section 135(6).

Amount Date of Transfer

Amount transferred to any fund speci!ed under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
135(5).

Name of the Fund Amount Date of Transfer

3,88,197.00-

Amount Unspent (in )INR

----
(b)   Details of CSR amount spent against the ongoing projects for the !nancial year: Not Applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

SI.
No

Name
of the
project

Item
from
the
list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII
to the
Act.

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Location of
the Project
State

District

Project
duration

Amount
allocated
for the
project
(in INR)

Amount
Spent in
the current
!nancial
year
(in INR)

Amount
transferred
to unspent
CSR
Account
for the
project as
per Section
135 (6)
(in INR)

Mode
of
implementation
Direct
(Yes / No).

Mode of
Implementation
Through
Implementing
Agency

Total

State Name
CSR
registration
no

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the !nancial year:0

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

SI.
No

Name of the
project

Item from the list
of activities speci!ed
in Schedule VII to
the Act

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Location of the
Project

District

Amount
spent for
the Project
(in INR)

Mode
of
implementation
Direct
(Yes / No).

Mode of
implementation –
through
implementing
Agency

State Name
CSR
registration
no

1 Provide
!nancial
assistance for
purchase of
USG (Ultra
Sonography)
Machine which
helps in serving
the
underprivileged
patient.

Promoting health
care including
preventive
health care

Yes Gujarat Vadodara 11,50,000.00 No Rogi
Kalyan
Samiti,
SSG
Hospital

F/1721/
Vadodara
dated
16.05.2005
issued by
Additional
Charity
Commissioner,
Vadodara

2 Provide
Medical
Assistance
to
underprivileged
Children.

Promoting health
care including
preventive
health care

Yes Gujarat Vadodara 4,98,117.00 No Medical
Care
Centre
Trust

F/125/
Vadodara
dated
31.07.1972
issued by
Additional
Charity
Commissioner,
Vadodara

Total 16,48,117.00

8.   (a)   CSR amount spent or unspent during the !nancial year:

-

-

- -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) Amount spent for the Financial Year INR 16,48,117.00

(8b + 8c + 8d + 8e)

(g)   Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in INR)

Two percent of average net pro!t of the company as

persection 135(5)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the !nancial year [(ii)-(i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or

activities of the previous !nancial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding !nancial years

[(iii)-(iv)]

(I)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

9.   (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three !nancial years:     Not Applicable

SI.
No.

Preceding
Financial
year.

Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account
under Section 135 (6)
(in INR)

Amount spent
in the
reporting
Financial Year
(in INR)

Amount transferred to any fund
speci!ed under Schedule VII as
per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining
to be spent in
succeeding !nancial
years. (in INR)

Name of
the Fund

Amount
(in INR)

Date of
transfer

(b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the !nancial year for of the preceding !nancial

year(s): Not applicable

ongoing projects

SI.
No.

Project ID. Name of the
Project.

Financial Year
in which the
project was
commenced.

Project
duration.

Amount
spent on the
project in
the reporting
Financial
Year
(in INR)

Cumulative
amount spent
at the end of
reporting
Financial
Year. (in INR)

Status of the
project -
Completed
/Ongoing.

amount
allocated
for the
project
(in INR)

Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (9)(8)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, Not Applicable

furnish the details relating to the asset so created or

acquired through CSR spent in the !nancial year.

(asset – wise allocation)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or bene!ciary under

whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired

(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent
of the average net pro!t as per section 135(5):

The ba lance amoun t o f
INR 3,88,197.00 remained
unspent due to unintentional
short provision noticed during
t h e y e a r e n d a u d i t o f
F Y 2 0 2 0 - 2 1 . I t w i l l b e
transferred to government fund
noti!ed in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 before
September 30, 2021 as per
amendment made effective
from January 22, 2021.

For Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. For Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.

Tadasuke Hosoya Geeta Goradia
Chairman & Managing Director Chairperson of CSR Committee

DIN : 08232012 DIN : 00074343

Vadodara, June 16, 2021
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Contents of the CSR Policy

CSR is the process by which we think about and evolve our relationships with stakeholders for the common good
and demonstrate our commitment in this regard by adoption of appropriate business processes and strategies.
We use CSR to integrate economic, environment and social objectives with the company's operations and
growth.

(i) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive health care and
sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the
promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water.

(ii) Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially
among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

(iii) Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans;
setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for
reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.

(iv) Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of #ora and fauna, animal welfare,
agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water including
contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga.

(v) Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical
importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of traditional art and
handicrafts;

(vi) Measures for the bene!t of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents, Central Armed
Police Forces (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces (CPMF) veterans, and their dependents including
widows;

(vii) Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognised sports, paralympic sports and olympic sports

(viii) Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or Prime Minister's Citizen Assistance and Relief
in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other fund set up by the central govt. for socio
economic development and relief and welfare of the schedule caste, tribes, other backward classes,
minorities and women;

(ix) (a) Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the !eld of science, technology,
engineering and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State Government or Public Sector
Undertaking or any agency of the Central Government or State Government; and

(b) Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of Technology (IITs); National Laboratories
and autonomous bodies established under Department of Atomic Energy (DAE); Department of
Biotechnology (DBT); Department of Science and Technology (DST); Department of Pharmaceuticals;
Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH); Ministry of
Electronics and Information Technology and other bodies, namely Defense Research and Development
Organisation (DRDO); Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR); Indian Council of Medical
Research (ICMR) and Council of Scienti!c and Industrial Research (CSIR), engaged in conducting
research in science, technology, engineering and medicine aimed at promoting Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs).

(x) Rural development projects

(xi) Slum area development.

(xii) Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.
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Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial year ended on 31 March, 2021)

st

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
GIDC, Makarpura, Vadodara – 390 010

Dear Sirs,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practice by Panasonic Energy India Company Ltd. (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our veri!cation of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns !led and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its of!cers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the !nancial year ended on 31 March, 2021, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

st

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns !led and other records maintained by the
Company, for the !nancial year ended on 31  March, 2021, according to the provisions of:

st

1. The CompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

3. The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and External Commercial
Borrowings (ECB). – As reported to us there were no FDI, ODI and ECB transactions in the Company
during theAudit period;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBIAct');

A. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

B. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009. - Not Applicable as the Company did not issue any security during the !nancial
year under review.

D. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. - Not Applicable as the Company has not granted any
options to its employees during the !nancial year under review.

E. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008. - Not Applicable as the Company neither issued nor listed any debt securities during the
!nancial year under review.

F. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 - Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and
Share TransferAgent.
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We further report that as per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions were carried at meetings without any dissent.

Based on the Compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of certi!cates placed before
the Board and taken on record by the Directors at their meetings, we are of the opinion that there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as and forms an integral part of
this report.

Annexure

G. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. - Not
Applicable as the Company has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the
!nancial year under review.

H. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. - Not
Applicable as the Company did not buy back any security during the !nancial year under review.

6. Considering representation of management and products, process and location of the Company, following
laws are applicable speci!cally to the Company. Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant records on test check basis, we further report that the
Company has complied with the following laws;

A. The Water (prevention and control of pollution)Act, 1974
B. TheAir (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1981
C. The Environment (Protection)Act, 1984
D. The PetroleumAct, 1934

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

(i) The Mandatory Secretarial Standards (SS1 and SS2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards mentioned above.

We further report that;

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of theAct.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent atleast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clari!cations on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Place: Vadodara
Date: June 16, 2021

for J. J. Gandhi & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

(J. J. Gandhi)
Proprietor
FCS No. 3519 and CP No. 2515
UDIN : F003519C000475617
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report

Date: June 16, 2021
To,
The Members,
Panasonic Energy India Company Ltd.
GIDC, Makarpura,
Vadodara – 390 010

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The veri!cation was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are re#ected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and the practices, we followed provided a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not veri!ed the correctness and appropriateness of !nancial records and Books of Accounts of
the company. The Compliance of applicable !nancial laws like direct and indirect laws have not been
reviewed in thisAudit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory FinancialAudit and Other
designated professionals.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the veri!cation of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
ef!cacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Vadodara
Date: June 16, 2021

for J. J. Gandhi & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

(J. J. Gandhi)
Proprietor
FCS No. 3519 and CP No. 2515
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“Annexure-D” to the Board’s Report

Disclosure in the Board's Report under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment Remunerationand of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

1.    Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
20 1!nancial year 20 -2 :

2. The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Of!cer, Chief Executive
Of!cer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, for the !nancial year 2020-21 compared to 2019-20:

Name of Director

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Mayur Swadia

Mr. Atul Dalmia

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Mr. Mikio Morikawa (w.e.f. 01.04.2020)

Ratio

40.29:1

1.60:1

1.60:1

1.41:1

0.98:1

0.98:1

Sr. No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

3.    The Percentage change in the median remuneration of employees in the !nancial year 2020-21 as
compared to 2019-20 : 5.00%

The number of permanent employees on the roll of Company :
31-03-2021

801.00

31-03-2020

880.00

5 .00.    Average percentile increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel: 12 %

6.    The Board of Directors of the Company af!rms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy
of the Company.

* Part of the year

Sr. No. Name of Director / KMP % of increase / decrease

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya- Chairman & Managing Director

Ms. Geeta Goradia - Director

Mr. Mayur Swadia - Director

Mr. Atul Dalmia - Director

Mr.Hideyuki Okunaga

Mr.Mikio Morikawa (NED wef. 01.04.2020)

Mr. Anjan Shah - Chief Financial Of!cer

Ms. Susheela Maheshwari - Company Secretary·

106.53

17.39

17.39

8.76

89.18

N.A.

11.00

11.00

4.
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1. PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd., a Member of the 'Panasonic' group, is committed to the highest
standards of fair, ethical and transparent governance practices. The corporate governance policies
followed by Panasonic are intended to ensure transparency in all dealings. The Company recognizes the
importance of strong corporate governance which is an important mechanism of investor protection.

The Board of the Company acts as a trustee and assumes !duciary responsibility of protecting the interest
of the shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company. The Board supports the broad principles of
corporate governance. In order to attain highest level of corporate governance practice, the Board lays
strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity.

The Company believes that its systems and actions should be devoted for enhancing corporate
performance and maximizing shareholders value in the long term.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a balanced structure of the Board which is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing
Regulations”). As on March 31, 2021, the Board comprises of six Directors (!ve being Non-Executive
Directors), of which three Directors are the Independent Directors. The Non-Independent Directors
(Promoters) include a Chairman & Managing Director. None of the Directors have any inter-se relation
among themselves and any employee of the Company.

All Independent Directors on the Board are highly experienced, competent and renowned persons in their
respective !elds. They actively participate in the Board and Committee Meetings which is a great value
addition in the decision making process.

The Board and Committee Meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice atleast 9 to 10 days in
advance of the date of meeting. The Directors are provided with appropriate information in the form of
agenda items in a timely manner in order to enable them to deliberate on each agenda item and to make
informed decisions and provide appropriate directions to the management in this regard. All signi!cant
developments and material events are brought to the notice of the Board.

Video-conferencing facility which is capable of recording and storing the proceedings of meeting is also
provided at the Board and Committee meetings, in case any Director is unable to attend the meeting in
person but wishes to participate through video conference.

During the Financial year 2020-21, four Board Meetings were held on following dates:

June 30, 2020; August 11, 2020;November 09, 2020 and February 09, 2021.The gap between any two
Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty (120) days as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and the Listing Regulations. However due to Covid-19 scenario and Lockdown situation certain
Board Meeting were conducted beyond 120 days but were well within a time limit framed by MCA vide its
General Circular No. 11/2020 dated March 24, 2020.

The lastAnnual General Meeting was held on September 15, 2020.

Details of composition of the Board, attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and last Annual
General Meeting (AGM), other Directorships (excluding Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies
and Section 8 Companies) category, and Committee positions as on March 31, 2021 are given below:

* Excluding Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
** Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee as provided in Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

including Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
ED (P)-Executive Director (Promoter), NED (I)-Non-Executive Director (Independent), NED (P)-Non-Executive Director (Promoter)
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No. of Attendance *Other **No. of Audit

Name of the DIN Category Board at the last Directorships Committees and

Director Meetings AGM in Public Stakeholders

attended Companies Relationship

Committee

Chairman Member

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya ED (P) 4/4 Yes 1 NIL 2

Ms. Geeta Goradia

08232012

Yes 3 NILNED (I)

No

3

NIL

Mr. Mayur Swadia

00074343

NED (I)

3/4 Yes

2

Mr. Atul Dalmia

01237189

Yes NILMr. Mikio Morikawa

06792183 NED (P) 1/4 1 NILMr. Hideyuki Okunaga

00228257

4/4

4/4

3/4

Yes

NIL

NIL 1

2

3

02611904

NED (I)

NED (P)

NIL 1



Name of Director Indian listed companies Category of directorship

Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. Executive DirectorMr. Tadasuke Hosoya

Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd.

Ms. Geeta Goradia Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. Independent Director

Transpek Industry Ltd. Independent Director

Independent DirectorMr. Mayur Swadia Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.

Independent Director

Mr. Atul Dalmia Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. Independent Director

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. Non-Independent Director

List of Directorship held in Public Listed Companies and Category of Directorship:

Familiarization Programme for Directors:

The Company follows a structured orientation programme for its newly inducted Director(s) to ensure that
they become fully aware of the industry in which the Company operates; the processes, systems and policies
adopted and followed by the Company. The familiarization programme focuses on the business model and
operations of the Company and also aims at informing the Directors on the legal, regulatory as well as socio-
economic regime in which the Company functions.

A formal letter of appointment is given to every Director after appointment, which inter alia explains the role,
functions, duties and responsibilities expected from him as Director of the Company.

Every Director so appointed is provided with an Introductory Kit consisting of:

1) Annual Report;

2) Memorandum andArticles of the Company; and

3) Brochure of Company's product and details thereof.

The Chairman & Managing Director also have one to one discussion with the newly appointed Director to
familiarize him with the Company's operations and laws applicable to it. Plant/Factory visit is also organized
for the purpose so mentioned.

The familiarization programme for Independent Directors in terms of provisions of Listing Regulations is
uploaded on the website of the Company https://www.panasonicenergyindia.in

Skill Matrix

The Board skill matrix provides a guide as to the core skills, expertise, competencies and other criteria
(collectively referred to as 'skill sets') considered appropriate by the Board of the Company in the context of its
business and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the Board. The skill sets
will keep on changing as the organization evolves and hence the Board may review the matrix from time to
time to ensure that the composition of the skill sets remains aligned to the Company's strategic direction.

The skill sets identi!ed by the Board along with its availability assessment collectively for the Board and
individually for each Director are as under:

Areas of
Skills / Expertise

Mr.
Tadasuke
Hosoya

Ms.
Geeta

Goradia

Mr.
Atul

Dalmia

Mr.
Mayur
Swadia

Mr.
Mikio

Morikawa

Mr.
Hideyuki
Okunaga

INDUSTRY SKILLS

Strategic Thinking

Executive Leadership and

Board Experience

Technology Innovation

Decision Making

Policy Making

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √
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Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd. Non-Independent Director

Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd. Non-Independent Director

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Non-Independent Director

Ambalal Sarabhai Enterprises Limited



Separate meeting of Independent Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company
was held on February 09, 2021 in which the following matters were considered: -

· Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;
· Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of the Executive and

Non-Executive Directors;
· Evaluation of quality, content and timelines of #ow of information between the Management and the

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonable perform its duties.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman & Managing Director and the Non-Executive Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

Con"rmation on Independence of Independent Directors

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors, ful!l the criteria of independence as laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and such is
based on the declaration received from all the Independent Directors. The Board has also con!rmed that they
are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair
or impact their ability to discharge their duties and that they are independent of the management.

A formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors as provided under Companies Act, 2013 has been
issued and disclosed on website of the Company viz. www.panasonicenergyindia.in

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

v Terms of Reference

The powers and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with Section 177 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 18 and Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board of
Directors. Its purpose is to assist the Board in ful!lling its overall responsibilities of monitoring !nancial
reporting processes, reviewing the Company's established systems and processes for internal
!nancial controls, governance and reviewing the Company's statutory and internal audit activities. The
Audit Committee also oversees and reviews the functioning of a vigil mechanism and Whistle Blower
Policy.All the members of theAudit Committee are !nancially literate and possess sound knowledge in
!nance and accounting practices.

Areas of
Skills / Expertise

Mr.
Tadasuke
Hosoya

Ms.
Geeta

Goradia

Mr.
Atul

Dalmia

Mr.
Mayur
Swadia

Mr.
Mikio

Morikawa

Mr.
Hideyuki
Okunaga

GOVERNANCE AND COLLECTIVE SKILLS

Strategy and risk Management

Corporate Governance

Finance and Accounting Experience

PERSONAL ATTRIBUTES

Integrity and Ethical Standards

Leader and Team Player

Critical and Innovative Thinker

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √

√ √ √ √ √ √
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Sr. Name of Status No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

No. Member held attended

1 Mr. Mayur Swadia Chairman 4

2 Ms. Geeta Goradia Member 4 4

3 Mr. Atul Dalmia Member 4 3

4 Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya Member 4 4

4

The Company's Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and head of !nance department are invited to
attend the meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Mr. Mayur Swadia, the Chairman of the Audit Committee was present in the last Annual General
Meeting held on September 15, 2020.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

v Terms of Reference

Committee's constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the
appointment, re-appointment and remuneration payable to Directors and senior management
personnel. The remuneration is determined by the Committee keeping in view (i) !nancial position of
the Company; (ii) trends in the industry; (iii) appointee's quali!cation, experience, past performance
and past remuneration etc.

v Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on January 23, 2004 and was reconstituted from time to time, latest reconstitution being on
February 10, 2020.

The present composition of the Committee and the number of meetings held and attended by
Members during the year are as under:

Sr. Name of Status No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

No. Member held attended

1 Mr. Atul Dalmia Chairman 1 1

2 Member 1 1

3 Mr. Mayur Swadia Member 1 1

4 Member 1 1

Ms. Geeta Goradia

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Atul Dalmia, the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present in the last
Annual General Meeting held on September 15, 2020.

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out includes
and it covers the areas which are relevant for the functioning of Independent Directors such as
preparation, participation, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, integrity
and maintenance of con!dentiality and independence of behavior and judgement.
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v Composition

TheAudit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 23, 2001
and was reconstituted from time to time, latest reconstitution being on February 10, 2020. The present
composition of theAudit Committee and the number of meetings held and attended by Members during
the year are as under:

49th Annual Report
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6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

v Terms of Reference

Stakeholders Relationship Committee was originally formed in the Board Meeting held on
January 23, 2001 and it was reconstituted from time to time by the Board of Directors, latest reconstitution
being on February 05, 2019. The Committee speci!cally looks into issues relating to investors including
share related matters and redressal thereof.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee are as under:

1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,
issue of new/duplicate certi!cates, general meetings etc.;

2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share TransferAgent; and

4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company.
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5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee at its meeting held on May 21, 2014. This
Committee was subsequently reconstituted by the Board of Directors from time to time, latest
reconstitution being on February 05, 2019 respectively.

v Terms of Reference

Your Company has been contributing in the upliftment and development of the surrounding areas.
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII, and Rules made
thereunder a duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in place. The CSR policy has
been placed on the website of the Company viz. www.panasonicenergyindia.in

The CSR Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, inter alia, to:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility policy indicating the
activities to be undertaken by the Company.

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred.

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility policy.

d) Such other roles and functions as may be prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

v Report on CSR activities

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the information on the CSR
activities undertaken by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed to the Board's
Report.

v Composition of CSR Committee

The present composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on March 31, 2021 and the
details of Members' participation at the meeting of the Committee are as under:

Sr. Name of Status No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

No. Member held attended

1 Chairperson 1 1

2 Member 1 1

3 Member 1 1Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya



Ms. Susheela Maheshwari, Company Secretary has been designated as the Compliance Of!cer and also
acts as Secretary of the Committee.

The meeting of the Committee for the !nancial year 2020-21 was held on February 09, 2021.

Mr. Mayur Swadia, the Chairman of the Committee was present in the lastAnnual General Meeting held on
September 15, 2020.

The total number of correspondence received from the shareholders was 168 of which no correspondence
was in the nature of complaint. No investor correspondence remains unattended for more than 30 days.

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading. All the Directors, employees and other persons who are
expected to have access to Unpublished Price Sensitive Information relating to the Company are
governed by this Code. The Company has also adopted 'The Code of practices and Procedures' for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information in compliance with Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations.

7. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

v Pecuniary Relationships

None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company has any pecuniary relationships or material
transactions with the Company except for sitting fees [paid to NED (I) only] for attending Board meetings or
Committee meetings thereof and commission on net pro!ts, if any.

In compliance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 issued by ICAI, transactions with related parties have
been furnished under notes to the accounts of the !nancial statements.

v Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

In terms of ordinary resolution passed by the Members at Annual General Meeting held on
September 15, 2020, Non-Executive Directors have been paid aggregate commission at a rate not
exceeding 1% per annum of the net pro!t of the Company computed in accordance with Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as determined by the Board of Directors, based on the association of each of the
Directors with the Company.

The Non-Executive Directors, except those nominated by promoter, were paid sitting fees of
INR 20,000.00 for attending each of the Board and Committee meetings.

Sr. Name of Status No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
No. Member held attended

1 Mr. Mayur Swadia Chairman 1 1

2 Member 1 1

3 Mr. Mikio Morikawa Member 1 1

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya
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Sr. No Name Category Sitting Fees

(INR)
(A)

Commission

(B)

Total

(C=A+B)

1

2

3

4

5

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Mayur Swadia

Mr. Atul Dalmia

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

NED (I)

NED (I)

NED (I)

NED (P)

NED (P)

2,00,000.00

2,00,000.00

1,40,000.00

-

-

3,19,190.00

3,19,190.00

3,19,190.00

3,19,189.00

3,19,190.00

5,19,190.00

5,19,190.00

4,59,190.00

3,19,189.00

3,19,190.00

Composition

The present composition of the Committee is as under:

(INR) (INR)



Financial
Date & Time Venue Special Resolutions

Year

2017-18 August 29, 2018 Royal Room, Appointment of Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya as Executive
(46thAGM) 10.00 A.M. Grand Mercure Vadodara Director w.e.f September 01, 2018.

Surya Palace, Vadodara

2018-19
(47 AGM)

th

September 10,
2019
10.00 A.M.

Royal Room,
Grand Mercure Vadodara
Surya Palace, Vadodara

1. Re-appointment of Ms. Geeta Goradia as
Independent Director.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Atu l Dalmia as
Independent Director.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Mayur Swadia as
Independent Director.

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Mikio Morikawa as
Chairman & Managing Director.

5. Rati!cation of remuneration payable to
Mr. Mikio Morikawa as Chairman & Managing
Director.

6. Rati!cation of remuneration payable to
Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya as Executive Director.

No resolutions were passed through postal ballot during the year 2020-21.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS

v The extracts of quarterly/half yearly and the annual audited results are normally published in widely
circulating national and local dailies viz., Business Standard (English) and Loksatta (Gujarati) and are
disseminated to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), where the shares of the Company are listed.

v The Company discloses to the stock exchange regarding information required to be disclosed under
regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations, including material information
which have a bearing on the performance/operations of the Company. All information is !led electronically
on BSE's online portal and BSE Listing Centre.
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Note:

1) The above !gures are exclusive of the accruals for gratuity as it is funded on the basis of an actuarial
valuation of the Company as a whole.

2) Notice period for the Executive Director is as applicable to the senior employees of the Company.
No severance fee is payable to the Executive Director on termination of employment.

3) The Company has not issued any stock option to its Directors & employees.

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the last three years are
given below.

v Remuneration to Executive Director

The remuneration of Chairman & Managing Director comprises of salary and perquisites.

Sr. No Name Salary

(A)

Perquisites

(B)

Total

(C=A+B)

1 Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya
Chairman & Managing Director

1,28,09,896.00 3,16,812.00 1,31,26,708.00

2019-20
(48 AGM)

th

September 15,
2020
10.00 AM

Through video conferencing/
other audio- visual means at
the Registered of!ce of the
company, G.I.D.C. Makarpura,
Vadodara- 390010

1. Payment of commission to Non-Executive
Directors of the company.

2. Appointment of Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya as
Chairman & Managing Director.

(INR) (INR) (INR)



c) Date of Book Closure

The Company's Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from
Thursday, September 16, 2021 to Wednesday, September 22, 2021 (both days inclusive).

d) Dividend Payment Date

Final dividend, if approved by the shareholders in the 49th AGM will be paid within 30 days of
declaration of the dividend at the rate of 80% per equity share of INR 10.00.

e) Listing on Stock Exchange

Company's equity shares are listed on the BSE Ltd. The Company has paid the listing fees for the
year 2021-22 to BSE.

f) Stock Code

The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

International Securities Identi!cation No. (ISIN)

504093

INE795A01017
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Day, date and time

Venue

Wednesday, September 22, 2021 at 11.00 A.M.

Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means
at the Registered Of!ce of the Company,
G.I.D.C. Makarpura, Vadodara- 390010

b) Financial Calendar

For the !nancial year 2021-22, !nancial results will be announced as per the following tentative schedule:

1 quarter ended on June 30, 2021
st

2 quarter ended on September 30, 2021
nd

3 quarter ended on December 31, 2021
rd

Audited !nancial results for the year ended on
March 31, 2022

Second week of August, 2021

Second week of November, 2021

Second week of February, 2022

Second week of May, 2022

v The annual report of the Company, the quarterly / half-yearly and the annual !nancial statements of the
Company are also placed on the Company's website at and can be
downloaded.

www.panasonicenergyindia.in

v The shareholders can visit the Company's web-site for !nancial information, shareholding information, all
kinds of policies of the Company, annual reports of the previous Financial Years, etc.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

a) Annual General Meeting

49th Annual Report

2020-21



i) Registrar & TransferAgent

Share transfer, dividend payment and all other investor related matters are being attended and
processed by our Registrar and Share TransferAgent (RTA) viz. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

j) Address for correspondence

Registered Of"ce

Company Secretary
Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
G.I.D.C., Makarpura, Vadodara-390 010,
Gujarat, India.
Tel. No.: (0265) 264 2661 / 263 8888
Fax: (0265) 263 8892
E-Mail:
Website:

susheela.maheshwari@in.panasonic.com
www.panasonicenergyindia.in

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
B-102 & 103, Shangrila Complex,
First Floor, Opp. HDFC Bank,
Near Radhakrishna Char Rasta,
Akota, Vadodara - 390 020,
Gujarat, India.
Tel. No.: +91 265 2356573
E-mail id:
Website:

vadodara@linkintime.co.in
www.linkintime.co.in
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g)        Market price data for the year 2020-21 of the Company on BSE

Month Months High price Months Low price Sensex

(INR) High Low

April’20

May’20

June’20

July’20

August’20

September’20

October’20

November’20

December’20

January’21

February’21

March’21

137.50

134.00

163.00

175.00

210.00

205.00

184.00

212.20

244.70

278.85

254.75

236.35

103.00

112.00

123.50

135.00

135.65

166.00

151.40

153.00

196.05

208.00

211.10

195.60

33,887.25

32,845.48

35,706.55

38,617.03

40,010.17

39,359.51

41,048.05

44,825.37

47,896.97

50,184.01

52,516.76

51,821.84

27,500.79

29,968.45

32,348.10

34,927.20

36,911.23

36,495.98

38,410.20

39,334.92

44,118.10

46,160.46

46,433.65

48,236.35

h)       Company's closing share price movement during the "nancial year 2020-21 on BSE vis-à-vis Sensex

(INR)
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11. DISCLOSURES

Ø There were no materially signi!cant transactions with related parties during the !nancial year which
were in con#ict with the interest of the Company. The details of the related party transactions are set
out in the notes to the !nancial statements forming part of this Annual Report. Company's Policy on
related party transactions is uploaded on the website of the Company: www.panasonicenergyindia.in

Ø There was no non-compliance by the Company during the last three !nancial years and hence no
penalties, strictures were imposed on the Company by stock exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three !nancial years.

Ø The Company had established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and employees
to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of
Conduct. The details of establishment of such mechanism have been posted by the Company on its
website. During the year under review, none of the employee was denied access to the Audit
Committee.
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k) Share Transfer System

Share transfer request received in physical mode are normally registered within 15 days from the
date of receipt and demat requests are also normally con!rmed within an average of 15 days from
the date of receipt.

Members may please note that with effect from April 01, 2019, shares held in physical form cannot
be transferred. Therefore, shareholders are requested to take action to dematerialize the equity
shares of the Company by opening a demat account.

l) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2021

m) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form on BSE. At the end of the
year, 69,85,377 shares were held in dematerialized form which comes to 93.14% of total capital.
The Company has demat connectivity with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) & Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

n) Plant locations

Location

Gujarat

Madhya Pradesh

Address

G.I.D.C., Makarpura, Vadodara - 390 010, Gujarat.

Plot No. 112, Sector III, Pithampur Industrial Area, Dist. Dhar – 454 774 (M.P.)

49th Annual Report

2020-21



42

Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

Ø Certi!cate from Practicing Company Secretary

Company has received Certi!cate from Vijay Bhatt & Co. (PCS) that none of Directors on Board of
the Company have been debarred or disquali!ed from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by Ministry of CorporateAffairs or any such statutory authority and the same is annexed
herewith as a part of this report.

Ø During the past year, there was no preferential allotment or quali!ed institutions placement.: N.A.

Ø The Board has accepted all the recommendations of all the Committee.

Ø The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations.

Ø Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, the Policy for determining 'material' subsidiary is
not applicable.

Ø Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities – N.A.

12 COMPLIANCE OF DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

Ø As the !nancial results are published in the newspapers and also posted on Company's website, the
same are not being sent to the shareholders.

The Company's !nancial statements for the !nancial year ended on March 31, 2021 do not contain
any modi!ed audit opinion.

Ø

Ø The InternalAuditor reports to theAudit Committee.

Information on dividend of past years

Pursuant to Section 124 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 dividend that remained unpaid or unclaimed for
the !nancial year ended on March 31, 2014 will be transferred to “Investor Education & Protection
Fund” (IEPF) a fund constituted by the Central Government under Section 125 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Before transferring the unclaimed dividends to IEPF, individual letters are sent to those Members
whose unclaimed dividends are due for transfer to enable them to claim the dividends before the
due date for such transfer.

While the Company has already written to the Members about the due dates for transfer to IEPF,
attention of the Members is again drawn to this matter through this annual report.

Ø Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal)Act, 2013;

Number of complaints !led during the !nancial year

Number of complaints disposed off during the !nancial year

Number of complaints pending as on end of the !nancial year

a.

b.

c.

NIL

NIL

NIL

Particulars As on March 31, 2021 As on March 31, 2020

Fees to Statutory Auditor

Reimbursement of Expenses

TOTAL

15.00

1.33

16.33

15.00

1.46

16.46

Ø Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors:                                                (INR in lakhs)

Year Rate of Dividend (%) Last date for claiming

2013-14 35.00 27.07.2021

2014-15 70.00 23.07.2022

2015-16 70.00 27.07.2023

2016-17 55.00 09.08.2024

2017-18 70.00 28.08.2025

2018-19 40.00 09.09.2026

2019-20 40.00 14.09.2027
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For the claims lodged after the last date mentioned above, the Company does not take any responsibility
for payment, as the amount lying unpaid and unclaimed shall be transferred to IEPF.

13. INFORMATION RELATING TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing 49 Annual General Meeting
of the Company under regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations are given below:

th

Vadodara

June , 2016 21

For and on behalf of the Board

Tadasuke Hosoya
Chairman & Managing Director

Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down the rules for code of conduct for the Members of the Board and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company. The code of conduct has also been posted on Company's website
(www.panasonicenergyindia.in). In compliance with this code, the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have af!rmed their compliance with the code for the year ended on March 31, 2021. A declaration to
this effect duly signed by the Chairman & Managing Director forms part of thisAnnual Report.

Name of the

Director
: Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Date of Birth : November 17, 1965

Educational

Quali"cation
: Bachelor of Economics, Kobe University

Speci"c

functional Area
: Company Executive

Brief Resume of

the Director

:

Shareholding of

the Director

:
NIL

Other

directorships held

: Public Companies

Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd.
Private Companies
NIL

Foreign Companies

NIL

Other Committees

of Directors where

membership held

:

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga joined Panasonic Corporation in 1988. He is having
vast experience in Corporate Planning group for more than three decades and
also worked at various senior positions in the overseas operations.

None

49th Annual Report

2020-21
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To,
The Members of
Panasonic Energy India Company Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Panasonic Energy India Company
Limited ('the Company'), for the year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated in 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the !nancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and considering the
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted
due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has compiled with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

We further state that this certi!cate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
ef!ciency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vijay Bhatt & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Vijay J. Bhatt
Proprietor
FCS: 4900

CP:2265
UDIN: F004900C000465305

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Place: Vadodara
Date: June 15, 2021
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
Panasonic Energy India Company Limited
G.I.D.C., Makarpura,
P. B. No.: 719,
Vadodara - 390 010

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Panasonic Energy India Company Limited CIN: L31400GJ1972PLC002091having and having registered
of!ce at G.I.D.C., Makarpura, P. B. No.: 719, Vadodara - 390 010 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'),
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certi!cate, in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para - C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the veri!cations (including Directors
Identi!cation Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its of!cers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disquali!ed
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of CorporateAffairs, or any such other StatutoryAuthority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our veri!cation. This
certi!cate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the ef!ciency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vijay Bhatt & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Vijay J. Bhatt
Proprietor
FCS: 4900

CP:2265
UDIN: F004900C000465305

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Sr. No. Name of Directors DIN
Date of Appointment

in Company *

01

02

03

04

05

06

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Ms. Geeta Amit Goradia

Mr. Atul Nandkishore Dalmia

Mr. Mayurkumar Kishorchandra Swadia

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

02611904

06792183

08232012

00074343

00228257

01237189

01.07.2015

01.06.2019

01.09.2018

21.05.2014

29.10.2014

29.10.2014

Place: Vadodara
Date: June 15, 2021
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CEO CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the Company has laid down the rules for code of conduct for the members of the Board and
Senior Management, as per Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

I hereby further certify that the Company has obtained certi!cate for compliance of rules of code of conduct, from
the Board Members and Senior Management personnel for the !nancial year ended on March 31, 2021.

For Panasonic Energy India Co. Ltd.

Tadasuke Hosoya
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 08232012

Place: Vadodara
Date: April 30, 2021
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To the Members of Panasonic Energy India Company Limited

Report on the audit of the "nancial statements

Opinion

We have audited the !nancial statements of Panasonic Energy India Company Limited (“the Company”),which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Statement of Pro!t and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the !nancial statements, including a summary of the signi!cant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
!nancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and pro!t and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash #ows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) speci!ed under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the !nancial statements under the provisions of theAct and the Rules thereunder,
and we have ful!lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf!cient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signi!cance in our audit of
the !nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
!nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Description of key audit matter

Measurement of provisions and contingent liabilities related to litigations and claims

[Refer to Note 3(k) to the Financial Statements– “Signi!cant accounting policies – Provisions, Contingent

Liabilities and ContingentAssets”, Note 31 to the Financial Statements – “Contingent Liabilities”]

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Provisions and contingent liabilities relate to
lit igations and claims arising from tax
proceedings and other regulatory proceedings.
The measurement of a provision or contingent
liability requires signi!cant judgement by the
Company because of the inherent complexity
in estimating future costs. The amount
recognized as a provision and disclosed as a
contingent liability is the best estimate of the
expenditure.

Signi!cant judgement and estimation is
involved to determine the likelihood and timing
of the cash out#ows and interpretations of the

In view of the signi!cance of the matter we
applied the following audit procedures in this
area, among others to obtain suf!cient
appropriate audit evidence:

· Testing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls around the measurement of
litigations and claims;

· Assessing the status of signi!cant litigations
by understanding it from the external !rm of
lawyers acting as the Company's advisors
and senior personnel of the Company. We
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legal aspects, tax legislations and judgements
previously made by authorities. Based on the legal
advice obtained from an external !rm of lawyers, a
provision was recognised on account of estimated
cash out#ow.

These provisions and contingent liabilities are
subject to changes in the outcomes of litigations and
claims and the positions taken by the Company.
These estimates could change signi!cantly over
time as new facts emerge and each legal case
progresses. Accordingly, measurement of
provisions and contingent liabilities related to
litigations and claims is a key audit matter.

have obtained and analysed the Company's
assessment on exposures and any additional
litigation;

· With respect to direct and indirect tax litigations,
we involved our tax specialists. Tax Specialists
analysed and challenged the assumptions used
in estimation of tax provisions based on their
knowledge and experiences of the application of
local legislation by the relevant authorities and
courts. We assessed the movement in the
litigations during the year and veri!ed underlying
documents such as appeals and submissions
made by the Company. On this basis, we
assessed the possible outcome of each litigation
and claim determined by the Company.

· Assessing the assumptions and crit ical
judgements made by the Company which
impacted the measurement of the provisions and
contingent liabilities;

· Evaluating estimation process of the Company
by comparing the estimates of prior year to the
actual outcome;

· For matters where the Company concluded no
provisions are required but requires disclosure of
contingent liability, we have examined the
adequacy and completeness of the disclosures
made in the !nancial statements.

Other information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Corporate Governance Report and Board's Report included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the !nancial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the !nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the !nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the !nancial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the "nancial statementsand board of directors'

The
give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs, pro!t and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash #ows of the Company in
accordance with

. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe guarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal !nancial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these !nancial statements that

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) speci!ed under Section 133 of the Act
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presentation of the !nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the !nancial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's !nancial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the "nancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the !nancial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to in#uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these !nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the !nancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
suf!cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal !nancial controls with reference to
!nancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast signi!cant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the !nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the !nancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the !nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and signi!cant audit !ndings, including any signi!cant de!ciencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most signi!cance in the audit of the !nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest bene!ts of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters speci!ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

A) As required by Section 143(3) of theAct, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro!t and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid !nancial statements comply with the Ind AS speci!ed under Section
133 of theAct.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali!ed as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of theAct.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its !nancial
position in its !nancial statements - Refer Note 31 to the !nancial statements;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The disclosures in the !nancial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in speci!ed bank
notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these
!nancial statements since they do not pertain to the !nancial year ended 31 March 2021.

C) With respect to the matter to be included in theAuditors' Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of theAct. The Ministry of CorporateAffairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah

Partner

Place: Vadodara

Date:  16 June 2021

Membership No. 045754

UDIN: 21045754AAAACM2660
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Annexure-Ato the Independent auditors' report on "nancial statements - 31 March 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical veri!cation of its property, plant and
equipment by which all the items of property, plant and equipment are veri!ed in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical veri!cation is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Accordingly, part of the
property, plant and equipment were physically veri!ed by the management in the current year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such veri!cation.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties including leasehold land,
included in property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 5 to the !nancial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically veri!ed by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of such veri!cation is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on veri!cation
between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been dealt with in books
of account.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, !rms or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.
Accordingly, compliance under Section 185 and Section 186 of theAct is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder apply.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax,
Customs Duty, Goods and Services Tax, Professional Tax and other material statutory dues have
been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. The Company is not having any dues in respect of Cess.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Wealth Tax, Excise Duty, Customs Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Professional
Tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax as at 31
March 2021 which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute other than those mentioned in the “Appendix I” to this report.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have any loans or borrowings from !nancial institutions or banks or Government or dues to debenture
holders during the year.Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its of!cers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Company's management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided by the Company in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to theAct.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company.Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the !nancial statements as
required by applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them.Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah
Partner

Place: Vadodara

Date: 16 June 2021
Membership No. 045754

UDIN: 21045754AAAACM2660
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Annexure-B to the Independent auditors' report on "nancial statements - 31 March 2021

Report on the internal "nancial controls with reference to the aforesaid "nancial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the CompaniesAct, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements of Panasonic Energy
India Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the !nancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal !nancial controls with reference
to !nancial statements and such internal !nancial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India
(“the Guidance Note”).

Management's responsibility for internal "nancial controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal !nancial controls based on the internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal !nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef!cient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

Appendix – I

Sr.

Name of
Statute

Nature  of
Dues

Amount
Involved

(INR Lakhs)

Amount
under dispute
not deposited
(INR Lakhs)

Period to which
amount related

Forum where the
Dispute is pending

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Customs Act,

1962

Finance Act,

1994

Sales Tax

Sales Tax

Sales Tax

Income Tax Act,

1961

Custom duty

Service tax

Sales Tax

Sales Tax

Sales Tax

Income Tax

81.81

13.89

101.28

101.04

7.32

278.85

1,294.16

9.43

81.81

13.89

95.20

83.38

7.32

218.05

-

7.54

From March 2011 to
September 2012

2018-19

From 2013 to 2016

From 1995 to 2014

1996-97

From 2005 to 2018

FY 2002-2003

FY 2011-12

Gujarat High Court

Add. Commi.

JNCH Mumbai

CESTAT, A'bad

Sales Tax Tribunal

High Court

Appeals Authorities

Commissioner (Appeals)

Gujarat High Court

Commissioner of

Appeals Income Tax
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Customs Act,

1962
Custom duty

Income Tax Act,

1961
Income Tax
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preparation of reliable !nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “theAct”).

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal !nancial controls with reference to
!nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
!nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
!nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal
!nancial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the !nancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf!cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements.

Meaning of Internal "nancial controls with reference to "nancial statements

Acompany's internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of !nancial reporting and the preparation of !nancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements include those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re#ect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of !nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the !nancial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal "nancial controls with reference to "nancial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal !nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal !nancial
controls with reference to !nancial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
!nancial controls with reference to !nancial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah
Partner

Place: Vadodara

Date: 16 June 2021
Membership No. 045754

UDIN: 21045754AAAACM2660
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

I ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 5

(b) 5

(c) Right of use assets 5

(e) Financial assets

(i) Loans 6
(f) Non-current tax assets

9(g) Other non-current assets

10

Total Non-current Assets

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories

11

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

12(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

13(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above

14

(iv) Loans

7(v) Others

(c) Other current assets 9

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

(a) Share capital

15(b) Other equity

16

Total equity

LIABILITIES

1 Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21

Total non current liabilities

2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities

17

(A) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises; and

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other !nancial liabilities

18

(b) Other current liabilities

20

(c) Short-term provisions

19

Total Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

Signi!cant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part

of the !nancial statements. 4 - 42

Note No. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Capital Work-in-progress

(d) Other Intangible assets

8

5

(a) Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

(b) Long-term provisions

(c)

(i)

(ii) Trade payables

(d) Current tax liability (Net)

1,965.43

46.87

248.14

29.18

51.91
711.58

29.08

3,082.19

3,630.41

447.22

538.84
4,386.35

51.30

172.40

757.67

9,984.19

13,066.38

750.00
9,158.18

9,908.18

186.31

72.98

16.41

275.70

73.18

210.44

625.34

1,144.34

307.34

497.24

24.62
2,882.50

3,158.20

13,066.38

6

18
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2,083.44

9.62

214.02

56.13

47.01
716.99

13.03

3,140.24

2,723.23

555.86

967.87
5,469.85

46.64

446.30

595.26

10,805.01

13,945.25

750.00
9,864.10

10,614.10

146.93

-

5.22

152.15

81.05

211.85

1,291.41

289.89

475.55
-

3,179.00

3,331.15

13,945.25

829.25

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah

Tadasuke Hosoya Mayur K. Swadia

Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN: 08232012 DIN:01237189

Partner

Membership No. 045754

Place : Vadodara Place : Vadodara

Date : Date :16 June 2021 16 June 2021

Susheela Maheshwari Anjan Shah

Company Secretary & DGM DGM (Finance)

(Corporate Secretarial & Legal)
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Note For the year ended

31 March 2021

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Income

Revenue from operations 22

Other income 23

Total Income (I)

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed, 24

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of !nished goods

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

25

Other manufacturing expenses 26

Employee bene!ts expense 27

Finance costs 28

Depreciation and amortization expenses 5

Other expenses 29

Total Expenses (II)

Pro"t before tax (I - II)

Tax expense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax 21

Pro"t after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassi"ed to pro"t or loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on de!ned
employee bene!t plan

Tax related to items that will not be reclassi!ed
to pro!t or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share {Face value INR 10 per share

(Previous year: INR 10 per share)}

Basic 30

Diluted 30

Signi!cant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the !nancial statements. 4 - 42

For the year ended

31 March 2020

20,353.14

390.23

20,743.37

10,498.69

1,409.56

(201.21)

597.78

4,273.99

21.56

316.42

3,307.02

20,223.81

519.56

230.41

(26.05)

315.20

(187.31)

47.14

(140.17)

175.03

4.20

4.20

23,235.49

387.88

23,623.37

10,618.15

1,734.76

773.34

671.91

4,548.72

39.79

285.38

3,552.74

22,224.79

1,398.58

368.42

(2.28)

1,032.44

(35.44)

8.92

(26.52)

1,005.92

13.77

13.77

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah

Tadasuke Hosoya Mayur K. Swadia

Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN: 08232012 DIN:01237189

Partner

Membership No. 045754

Place : Vadodara Place : Vadodara

Date : Date :16 June 2021 16 June 2021

Susheela Maheshwari Anjan Shah

Company Secretary & DGM DGM (Finance)

(Corporate Secretarial & Legal)
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash !ow from operating activities

Pro!t before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Loss/(Pro!t) on sale of assets (net)
Interest income

Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net)

Operating pro"t before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

Decrease/ (Increase) in oans and dvancesl a
Decrease/ (Increase) in non-current assets
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (Increase) in current assets
Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ (Decrease) in other !nancial iabilitiesl
Increase/ (Decrease) in other iabilitiesl

Income tax paid

Net Cash Flow from operating activities (A)

Investing activities

Purchase of  ixed assets including CWIPf
Proceeds from ale of ssetss a
Investments in ank depositsb
Interest eceivedr

Net cash from investing activities (B)

Financing activities

Interest aidp
Repayment of ease bligationl o

Net cash (used in) "nancing activities (C)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and ash equivalents at the beginning of the yearc
Cash and ash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 1 below)c

Notes:

1) Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:
on current accounts
on deposit accounts

Remittances in transit

2) The Cash #ow statement has been prepared by the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 on "Cash Flow Statements".

3) The Company does not have any current or non-current borrowings. The only out#ow from !nancing activities is on account of
payment of dividend, which has been disclosed separately in the Statement of Changes in Equity. Accordingly, a disclosure for
reconciliation of balances in borrowings and !nancial liabilities has not been provided separately.

Expected redit ossc l

Dividend paid, including dividend tax

57
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519.56

316.42
21.56
33.71

(305.22)

5.58
0.23

591.84

1.59
(0.84)

(141.40)
(14.96)

(654.33)

124.26
6.33

(12.25)

69.78
(29.98)

(206.13)

(236.11)

(244.13)
24.04

(1,096.39)
307.00

(1,009.48)

(3.14)

(87.54)
(348.68)

(439.36)

(1,684.95)
2,223.79

538.84

537.87
-

0.97
-

538.84

1,398.58

285.38
39.79
53.11

(307.29)

-

0.01

1,469.58

9.55
(9.00)

(108.64)
(112.00)

907.18
(130.10)

205.32
139.74
(17.45)

2,354.18
(398.44)

1,955.74

(370.36)
17.05

(1,083.50)
307.81

(1,129.00)

(13.92)

(88.78)
(295.01)

(397.71)

429.03
538.84

967.87

967.87

500.22
1.23
1.91

464.51

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah

Tadasuke Hosoya Mayur K. Swadia

Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN: 08232012 DIN:01237189

Partner

Membership No. 045754

Place : Vadodara Place : Vadodara

Date : Date :16 June 2021 16 June 2021

Susheela Maheshwari Anjan Shah

Company Secretary & DGM DGM (Finance)

(Corporate Secretarial & Legal)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

A) Equity share capital

B) Other equity

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at 1 April 2019 750.00

Changes during the year -

As at 31 March 2020 750.00

Changes during the year -

As at 31 March 2021 750.00

Reserves and Surplus

Other
Comprehensive

Income (OCI) TOTAL

Capital
reserve

Securities
premium

General
reserve

Retained
earnings

Remeasurement
of de"ned
bene"ts

As at 1 April 2019

Net pro!t for the year - - -

Other comprehensive income for the
year (net of tax)

- - -

Total comprehensive income for the
year

- - -

Dividend paid - - -

Tax on dividend - - -

As at 31 March 2020 25.00 928.13 7,534.47

Net pro!t for the year - - -

Other comprehensive income for the
year (net of tax)

- - -

Total comprehensive income for the
year

- - -

Dividend paid - - -

Tax on dividend - - -

As at 31 March 2021 25.00 928.13 7,534.47

Signi!cant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
!nancial statements.

4 - 42

983.36

315.20

-

315.20

300.00

61.67

936.89

(140.17)

(126.14)

-

(140.17)

-

-

(266.31)

9,344.82

315.20

(140.17)

175.03

300.00

61.67

9,158.18

25.00 928.13 7,534.47

1,032.44

-

1,032.44

300.00

-

-

(26.52)

(26.52)

-

-

(292.83)

1,032.44

(26.52)

1,005.92

300.00

-

9,864.101,669.33

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

Jeyur Shah

Tadasuke Hosoya Mayur K. Swadia

Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN: 08232012 DIN:01237189

Partner

Membership No. 045754

Place : Vadodara Place : Vadodara

Date : Date :16 June 2021 16 June 2021

Susheela Maheshwari Anjan Shah

Company Secretary & DGM DGM (Finance)

(Corporate Secretarial & Legal)
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Notes to the "nancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Note 1

Company overview

Panasonic Energy India Company Limited ('the Company') is a company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company has its registered of!ce at GIDC Makarpura,
Vadodara - 390010, Gujarat. The Company is engaged in business of manufacturing dry cell batteries and
lighting products.

Note 2

Basis of preparation of IndAS "nancial statements

Statement of compliance

These !nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as
per the Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 2015 prescribed under Section 133 of CompaniesAct,
2013 ('the Act') and rules issued thereunder.

Functional and presentation currency

These !nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company's functional currency.

Basis of measurement

These !nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for de!ned bene!t plans - net
de!ned bene!t (asset) / liabilities which have been measured at fair value based on principles of
IndAS 19 -"Employee bene!ts".

All assets and liabilities have been classi!ed as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to theAct.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation and presentation of !nancial statements requires the Company's Management ('the
Management') to make certain judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
!nancial statements and notes thereto. Such estimates and assumptions are based on Management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of !nancial statements. The actual outcome may
differ from these estimates. Management believes these assumptions are reasonable and prudent.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Signi"cant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of !nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a !nancial impact on the Company and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstance. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

a) Impairment of Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external
factors (signi!cant decline in asset's value, signi!cant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an
asset, poor economic performance of the asset etc.) which could result in signi!cant change in
recoverable amount of the PPE.

b) Determination of the estimated useful lives

Useful lives of all PPE are based on the estimation done by the Management which is in line with the useful
lives as prescribed in Part 'C' of Schedule II to the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from
those prescribed in Schedule II and in case of intangible assets, they are estimated by Management
based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset,
the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support.

49th Annual Report
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c) Current and deferred taxes

Signi!cant management judgment is required to determine the amount of current and deferred taxes that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable pro!ts together with future
tax planning strategies.

d) Employee bene"ts

Management's estimate of the Company's obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The
parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future in#ation rates for India.

Refer note 38 for details of the key assumptions used in determining the accounting of these plans.

e) Management estimate related provisions and contingent liability

Provisions & contingent liabilities:

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognizing provisions and the exposures to
contingent liabilities which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. If a loss arising from
these litigations and/or claims is probable and can be reasonably estimated, the management record the
amount of the estimated loss. If a loss is reasonably possible, but not probable, the management
discloses the nature of the signi!cant contingency and, if quanti!able, the possible loss that could result
from the resolution of the matter.As additional information becomes available, the management reassess
any potential liability related to these litigations and claims and may need to revise the estimates. Such
revisions or ultimate resolution of these matters could materially impact the results of operations, cash
#ows or !nancial statements of the Company.

Note 3

Signi"cant accounting policies

a) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and measurement

Items of PPE are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. All the direct expenditure related to implementation including
incidental expenditure incurred during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is
accounted as Capital work-in-progress and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the
respective item of PPE. Pre-operative costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the Statement of
Pro!t and Loss as and when incurred.

If signi!cant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic bene!ts associated
with the expenditure will #ow to the Company.

b) Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided on Straight Line Method / Written Down Value method
as per the useful life of respective PPE, as determined by the Management of the Company. In respect of
PPE purchased or put to use during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis from the date on
which such asset is purchased or put to use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is
amortised over the period of lease.
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Assets description

Factory buildings

Other buildings

Plant and machinery (including Dies)

Electrical installations

Of!ce equipments

Computers

Furniture and !xtures

Vehicles

Useful life (in years)

30

60

20

10

5

3

10

8
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The residual value, useful life and method of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

c) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic bene!ts that are attributable
to the assets will #ow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets
are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic bene!ts embodied in
the speci!c asset to which it relates.All other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss
as incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over the estimated period of bene!t i.e. 3 to 5 years.

d) Impairment of non-"nancial assets

The Company's non-!nancial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash in#ows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
in#ows that are largely independent of the cash in#ows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash #ows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that re#ects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks speci!c to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company's corporate assets (e.g., central of!ce building for providing support to various CGUs) do
not generate independent cash in#ows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation
surplus.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,
the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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e) Financial instruments

A !nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a !nancial asset of one entity and a !nancial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

A !nancial asset is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.At initial recognition, the Company measures a !nancial asset at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a !nancial asset not at fair value through statement of pro!t and loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the !nancial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purpose of subsequent measurement, !nancial assets are classi!ed into:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of pro!t and loss (FVTPL).

The Company classi!es its !nancial assets in the above mentioned categories based on:

a) The Company's business model for managing the !nancial assets;

b) The contractual cash #ows characteristics of the !nancial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A!nancial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The !nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold !nancial assets in
order to collect contractual cash #ows; and

b) The contractual terms of the !nancial assets give rise on speci!ed dates to cash #ows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
!nance income in the statement of pro!t and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of pro!t and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A !nancial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

a) The !nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
the contractual cash #ows and selling !nancial assets; and

b) The asset's contractual cash #ows represent SPPI.

Financial assets measured at fair value through the statement of pro"t and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category. Any !nancial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classi!ed as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a
!nancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch').

Derecognition

A !nancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a !nancial asset or part of a group of similar !nancial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to the cash #ows from the !nancial asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash #ows from the asset or has assumed an
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obligation to pay the received cash #ows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through 'arrangement; and either:

i) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of !nancial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the following:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

a) The 12 month's expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events
on the !nancial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

b) Full time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the !nancial instrument).

The Company follows 'simpli!ed approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. Under the simpli!ed approach, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable which is adjusted for
management's estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classi!ed, at initial recognition, as !nancial liabilities at fair value through statement
of pro!t and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.All !nancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

The Company's !nancial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

a) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;

b) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at fair value through statement of pro!t and loss
(FVTPL)

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liability for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
!nancial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A !nancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing !nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi!ed, such an exchange or
modi!cation is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss.

Offsetting "nancial instruments

Financial assets and !nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when, and only when, there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and there is
intention either to settle on net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

f) Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining cost for
various categories of inventories is as follows:
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Inventory

Raw materials & traded goods

Material, traded goods in transit

Work-in-process

Finished goods

Stores, Spares and Tools

Cost Formula

First-In-First-Out basis.

At Cost to date

At raw material cost plus conversion cost, wherever applicable

Cost represents material, labour and manufacturing expenses and other

incidental costs to bring the inventory in present location and condition.

First-In-First-Out basis.

g) Employee bene"ts

I) Short - term employee bene"ts

Employee bene!ts payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classi!ed as
short-term employee bene!ts and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

ii) Post - employment bene"ts

De!ned contribution plans

A de!ned contribution plan is a post-employment bene!t plan under which the Company makes
speci!ed contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. The
contributions are charged to the Statement of Pro!t and Loss of the year, when the contributions to
the respective funds are due. There are no obligations other than the contributions payable to the
respective fund.

De!ned bene!t plans

All employees are covered under Employees' Gratuity Scheme, which is a de!ned bene!t plan. The
Company contributes to a fund maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) on the
basis of the year-end liability determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Cost
Method. Remeasurements of the net de!ned bene!t liability, which comprise actuarial
gains/losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest) are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to de!ned bene!t plans are recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss.

In respect of all employees, the Company makes contributions determined based on speci!ed
percentage of salaries, towards Provident Fund to a Company managed Provident Fund Trust.
These contributions are charged to Statement of Pro!t and Loss as they accrue. The Company has
an obligation to fund any shortfall in the Trust Fund, as determined based on the year end actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Long- term employee bene!ts

Provision for long-term employee bene!ts comprise of compensated absences. These are
measured on the basis of year-end actuarial valuation in line with the Company's policy for
compensated absences. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Pro!t
or Loss in the period in which they arise.

h) Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that re#ects
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Revenue from the
sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually
on dispatch / delivery.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as speci!ed in the contracts with the
customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for
discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit
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period given to customers, there is no !nancing component in the contract.

Interest income is accounted for on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

Export incentives

Export incentives are accounted on accrual basis based in shipment of eligible exports and there is no
signi!cant uncertainty regarding realization.

Claims

Insurance and other claims are accounted to the extent lodged with the appropriate authorities and only
when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions and balances:

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the exchange
rates prevailing at the time of transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items are carried at historical cost using the exchange rates on the date of transaction,
other than those measured at fair value. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

Any income or expense on account of foreign exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognized in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss.

j) Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax re#ects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using Income tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for !nancial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable pro!ts will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable pro!t may not be available. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed
at each reporting date to evaluate if the related tax bene!t will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the Income tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax re#ects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

k) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an out#ow of resources embodying economic bene!ts will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Pro!t and Loss net of any
reimbursements.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that re#ects, when appropriate, the risks speci!c to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a !nance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

a) A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an out#ow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

b) Apresent obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

c) A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of out#ow of resources is
remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

l) Leases

Company as a lessee

IndAS 116 – Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces existing lease accounting guidance i.e. Ind AS 17 Leases. It sets out
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases, except short-term leases and leases for low-value items, under a single on-
balance sheet lease accounting model. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received. Certain lease arrangements include the option to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of rightof-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar
characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate
speci!c to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.
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The Company does not have any !nancial instruments which are measured at fair value. The market rate
used for this purpose is based on Level III valuation techniques.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes (Refer Note 35):

1. Disclosures for valuation methods, signi!cant estimates and assumptions

2. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

3. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

n) Segment reporting

The Company's Chairman and Managing Director alongwith Board of Directors allocate resources and
assess the performance of the Company. Thus, they are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).
The CODM monitor the operating results of the business as one segment, hence no separate segments
need to be disclosed.

o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the pro!t or loss attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the !nancial year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of !xed payments, including
in-substance !xed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if
there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the rightofuse asset or is recorded in pro!t or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

Lease liability and the right of use asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease
payments have been classi!ed as !nancing activities.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases
that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and assets with low
value leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
in statement of pro!t and loss over the lease term. The related cash #ows are classi!ed as operating
activities.

m) Fair value measurement

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the !nancial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as under, based on the lowest level input that is
signi!cant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

● Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

● Level II-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi!cant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

● Level III-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi!cant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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Diluted earnings per share, adjusts the !gures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other !nancing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Note 4

Recent accounting developments

MCA issued noti!cations dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to
enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its !nancial statements. These
amendments are applicable to the Company for the !nancial year starting 1stApril, 2021.
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6 Financial assets - Loans (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current

Security and other deposits

Total

Current

Security and other deposits

Loans to employees

Total

7 Financial assets - Others (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current

Receivable from related parties (refer Note 37)

Other receivables

Total

8 Tax assets (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current

Advance tax and TDS (net of provisions)

Total

9 Other assets (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Total

Current

Prepaid expenses

Advance to suppliers

Balances with Government authorities

Other receivables

Total

10 Inventories (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Raw materials

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores & spares

Stock-in-trade

Goods-in-transit

Raw materials

Traded goods

Total

Refer Note 3(f) on signi!cant accounting policy for basis of inventory valuation.

1,107.74

347.79

1,548.68

383.58

137.67

23.75

81.21

3,630.41

27.04

2.04

29.08

74.31

136.60

546.69

0.07

757.67

711.58

711.58

159.80

3.78

8.82

172.40

51.91

51.91

13.71

37.59

51.30

47.01

47.01

11.21

35.43

46.64

Discounts receivable

423.22

1.34

21.74

446.30

716.99

716.99

1.99

11.04

13.03

198.66

27.71

368.74

0.15

595.26

773.07

337.03

856.31

394.58

136.27

225.97

-

2,723.23
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11 Current "nancial assets - Trade receivables (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

From Others
(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

(c) Trade Receivables which have signi!cant increase in

Credit Risk
(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired

From related parties (refer Note 37)

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Total

Refer Note 35 on !nancial instruments.

12 Current "nancial assets - Cash and cash equivalents (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balances with banks

- on current accounts

- on deposit accounts

Cash on hand

Remittances in transit

Total

13 Current "nancial assets - Other bank balances (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deposits with original maturity over 3 months but less than

12 months

Margin money deposits

Unpaid dividend accounts

Total

a) Deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits which can be withdrawn by the

Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal amount.

b) Earmarked balances pertain to amounts deposited in unclaimed dividend accounts which are earmarked for

payment of dividends and cannot be used for any other purpose.

c) Margin money deposits consists of margin money against bank guarantees.

14 Share capital

No. of shares Amounts in

INR Lakhs

Authorised Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each

As at 1 April 2019 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

As at 31 March 2020 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

As at 31 March 2021 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

Less: Allowance for credit impaired

-

390.10

-

5.58
(5.58)

57.12

447.22

537.87

-

0.97

-

538.84

5,278.06

112.80

78.99

5,469.85

49th Annual Report
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-

525.01

-

5.58
(5.58)

30.85

555.86

464.51

500.22

1.23

1.91

967.87

4,207.14

105.21

74.00

4,386.35
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No. of shares Amounts in

INR Lakhs

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each

As at 1 April 2019 75,00,000 750.00

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

As at 31 March 2020 75,00,000 750.00

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

As at 31 March 2021 75,00,000 750.00

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holder of an equity share as
re#ected in the records of the Company on the date of the shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of
each share held. Any dividend declared by the company shall be paid to each holder of Equity shares in proportion
to the number of shares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In the event of liquidation of the
Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets of the
Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total
equity shares outstanding as on that date.

Details of shares held by parent company & ultimate parent company and their subsidiaries:

Name of equity shareholder No. of Shares % of holding

Panasonic Corporation, Japan (the holding company)

As at 31 March 2021 43,54,144 58.06%

As at 31 March 2020 43,54,144 58.06%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as under:

Name of equity shareholder No. of Shares % of holding

Panasonic Corporation, Japan (the holding company)

As at 31 March 2021 43,54,144 58.06%

As at 31 March 2020 43,54,144 58.06%

15 Other equity (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Capital state subsidy reserve (A)

Securities premium (B)

General reserve (C)

Retained earnings

At the commencement of the year

Add: Net pro!t for the year

Less: Appropriations

Dividend paid

Tax on dividend paid

Closing balance (D)

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

At the commencement of the year

Remeasurements of de!ned bene!t liability /
asset (net of tax) (FVTOCI)

Closing balance (E)

Total (A+B+C+D+E)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

1) Capital state subsidy reserve represents reserve created in earlier years on receipt of State Investment
Subsidy from The Directorate of Industries, Madhya Pradesh.

2) Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

3) General reserve is created out of pro!ts earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the
Statement of Pro!t and Loss. The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of fully
paid-up shares.

25.00

928.13

7,534.47

983.36

315.20

(300.00)

(61.67)

936.89

(126.14)

(140.17)

(266.31)

9,158.18

25.00

928.13

7,534.47

936.89

1,032.44

(300.00)

-

1,669.33

(266.31)

(26.52)

(292.83)

9,864.10
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4)

5) Remeasurements of de!ned bene!t liability / asset comprises of actuarial gains and losses and return

on plan asset (excluding interest income).

16 Current "nancial liabilities - Trade payables (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

Dues to other than micro, small and medium enterprises

Dues to related parties (refer Note 37)

Total

Notes:

a)

b)

c)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

a) Principal amount payable to suppliers as at year end 210.44

b) Interest due thereon as at year end -

c)
196.90

d) Amount of interest paid under MSMED Act, 2006 to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

-

e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
the accounting year.

6.42

f)

-

17 Current "nancial liabilities - Others (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deposits

Payable for capital assets

Unpaid dividends

Other accrued liabilities

Total

Retained earnings are the pro!ts that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to General reserve
and payment of dividend. The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity
shareholders is determined as per the provisions of the Act and the dividend distribution policy of the
Company.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board of Directors has proposed a !nal dividend of INR 8.00
(31 March 2020 INR 4.00) per share to be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to
approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these Ind
AS !nancial statements. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is INR 600 Lakhs (31 March 2020
INR 300.00 Lakhs) and the dividend distribution tax thereon amounts to INR Nil (31 March 2020 INR Nil). The
proposed dividend for the previous year was INR 4.00 per equity share.

.00

210.44

307.84

317.50

835.78

Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders.
The average credit period for purchase of materials and traded products ranges from 30 to 45 days.

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 35.

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force
from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium
enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the Management, dues to Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identi!ed on the basis of
information collected by the Management till date and relied upon by the auditors. The disclosures as
required by Section 22 of the MSMEDAct are given below:

Principal Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year.

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23
of the MSMEDAct, 2006.

-

-

-

49th Annual Report
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211.85

430.55

398.70

1,041.10

211.85

209.03

6.78

31.08

7.61

74.00

1,031.65

1,144.34

23.73

9.95

78.99

1,178.74

1,291.41
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18 Provisions (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current
Provision for gratuity (refer Note 38)
Provision for compensated absences

Total

21 Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) (net)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred tax liabilities

Excess of depreciation / amortisation on PPE under tax law over
depreciation /amortisation provided in accounts

Others

Total Deferred tax liabilities (A)

Deferred tax assets

Unpaid liabilities allowable on payment basis under Section 43B
of Income Tax Act, 1961

Others

Total Deferred tax assets (B)

Net Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) (A-B)

(i) Movements in Deferred tax assets / liabilities (net) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Disallowances Others Net

under Deferred

Income tax
Tax

Liabilities/

(Assets)

As at 1 April 2019

Charged / (Credited)

- to statement of pro!t and loss

- to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2020

Charged / (Credited)

- to statement of pro!t and loss

- to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2021

19 Other current liabilities (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Advances from customers
Advances from scrap traders
Duties and taxes payable

Total

131.19
4.91

171.24

307.34

159.45

(21.23)

-

138.22

(70.28)

1.59

(47.14)

(115.83)

0.44

(6.42)

-

(5.98)

89.61

(26.06)

(47.14)

16.41

138.22

-

138.22

115.83

5.98

121.81

16.41

Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer Note 3 )8 72.98

72.98

115.88
381.36

497.24

Total

20 Current tax liabilities (net) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provision for tax (net of advances) -

Total

24.62

- 24.62

Excess of depreciation /
amortisation on PPE
under tax law over

depreciation /amortisation
provided in accounts

-

-

99.19
376.36

475.55

80.38
1.54

207.97

289.89

130.22

-

130.22

119.67

5.33

125.00

5.22

(8.00)

-

130.22

5.08

(8.92)

(119.67)

0.65

-

(5.33)

(2.27)

(8.92)

5.22
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22 Revenue from operations (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Sale of products

Other operating income

Total

23 Other income (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Pro!t on sale of assets

Interest income on deposits

Foreign exchange gains (net)

Miscellaneous income

Total

24 Cost of materials consumed (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening stock

Add : Purchases

Less : Closing stock

Total

25 Changes in inventories of "nished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods (including stock in trade and materials in transit)

Work in progress

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods (including stock in trade and materials in transit)

Work in progress

Total Net (Increase) / Decrease

26 Other manufacturing expenses (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Consumption of stores and spares

Power and fuel

Water, gas and oil

Repairs to machineries

Repairs to buildings

Total

20,298.49

54.65

20,353.14

305.22

21.26

12.73

51.02

390.23

685.03

10,945.15

1,131.49

10,498.69

1,920.15

239.90

2,160.05

2,013.47

347.79

2,361.26

(201.21)

104.70

257.25

128.61

93.66

13.56

597.78

49th Annual Report
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23,199.58

35.91

23,235.49

307.29

8.42

45.26

26.91

387.88

1,131.49

10,485.70

999.04

10,618.15

2,013.47

347.79

2,361.26

1,250.89

337.03

1,587.92

773.34

126.79

253.82

148.12

112.05

31.13

671.91
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27 Employee bene"t expenses (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer Note 38)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

28 Finance costs (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Other !nance costs

Total

29 Other expenses (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Rent (refer Note )40

General repairs

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional charges

Transportation expense

Travelling and conveyance

Other bank charges

CSR expenses

Post, telegrams and telephone expenses

Sales promotion expenses

Royalty and brand fees

Loss on sale of assets

Research and development expenses

Directors’ commission (refer Note 37)

Director’s sitting fees (refer Note 37)

Auditors’ remuneration (refer Note below)

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

(i) Payment to Auditors* (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit 15.0015.00

Other services 8.001.50

* excluding applicable taxes

3,906.64

235.85

131.50

4,273.99

21.56

21.56

Expected credit loss

Reimbursement of expenses 1.831.60

2.95

29.37

26.15

41.59

119.46

602.82

758.07

9.59

18.42

5.58

48.15

913.03

346.95

54.97

6.08

7.80

7.00

24.83

284.21

3,307.02

4,103.20

292.13

153.39

4,548.72

39.79

39.79

0.97

57.48

35.90

35.06

85.52

632.39

528.61

6.49

20.36

-

51.90

1,329.68

397.43

61.53

6.28

16.03

5.40

18.10

263.61

3,552.74
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 18.42

Amount spent during the year on:

Construction /acquisition of any asset -

On purpose other than above 18.42

Amount yet to be spent:

Construction /acquisition of any asset -

On purpose other than above -

Total 18.42

30 Earnings per share (EPS) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Pro"t attributable to equity shareholders:

Net pro!t after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Amount in INR Lakhs) 315.20

Adjusted for the effect of dilution (Amount in INR Lakhs) 315.20

Weighted average number of equity shares for:

Basic EPS 75,00,000

Adjusted for the effect of dilution 75,00,000

Earnings Per Share (INR):

Basic 4.20

Diluted 4.20

31 Contingent liabilities (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

a) Disputed Excise / Service tax matters pending before 135.37
Assessing/Appellate Authorities

b) Income tax matters 401.12

c) Sales Tax / VAT matters 297.25

d) Others 99.42

e) Claims from employees and former employees Amount
unascertainable

f)

Amount
unascertainable

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February
28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set out
the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be
identi!ed for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of
Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition was !led
against this decision which has been dismissed by SC on 28 August 2019.
In view of management, guidelines directed under SC judgement has been
implemented w.e.f. 01 August 2019. In addition, the SC judgement hasn’t
expressed whether this effect shall be prospectively or retrospectively, the
impact before 01 April 2019, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently
no !nancial effect has been provided for in the accounts. Accordingly, this
has been disclosed as a contingent liability in the !nancial statements.

49th Annual Report
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(ii) Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses

The Company has spent INR 16.48 Lakhs (31 March 2020 INR 18.42 Lakhs) towards various schemes of Corporate
Social Responsibility as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details are:

I. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year INR 20.36 Lakhs (31 March 2020 INR 18.42
Lakhs)

II. Amount spent during the year on:

20.36

-

16.48

-

3.88

20.36

III.    The Company carries provision of INR 3.88 Lakhs for Corporate social responsibility expenses for current year.

IV.    The Company does not have any ongoing projects as at 31March, 2021.

1,032.44

1,032.44

75,00,000

75,00,000

13.77

13.77

196.97

401.12

351.57

86.54

Amount
unascertainable

Amount
unascertainable
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3 . Commitments2

Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances)
is INR 1.99 Lakhs (31 March 2020: INR 27.63 Lakhs)

33. The Company's international and speci!ed domestic transactions with associated enterprises are at
arm's length, as per the independent accountant's report for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
Management believes that the Company's international and domestic transactions with associated
enterprises post 31 March 2020 continue to be at arm's length and that transfer pricing legislations will
not have any impact on the Ind AS !nancial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses for
the year and the amount of provision for taxation at the year end.

3 . Operating segments4

The business of the Company mainly comprises of sale of “Dry Cell Batteries and Torches” which has
been identi!ed as a single reportable segment for the purpose of IndAS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’.

Entity-wide disclosures as required under IndAS 108 are as under:

Segment revenue from “Dry Cell Batteries and Torches” represents revenue generated from external
customers which are less than 10% of the total revenues of the Company. Accordingly, the Company
has only single geographical segment to be reported.

All assets are located in the company’s country of domicile.

Further, the Company does not have revenue more than 10% of total revenue from single customer.

35 Financial Instruments - Fair value and risk measurements

A) Accounting classi"cation and fair values (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021

Carrying amount Fair value #

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 - Level 2 - Level 3 - Total

Cost Quoted Significant Significant

price in observable unobser-

active inputs vable

markets inputs

Financial Assets

Loans

- Current - - - - - -

Trade receivables - - - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -

Other bank balances - - - - - -

Other financial assets

- Non-current - - - - - -

- Current - - - - - -

Total Financial Assets - - - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

- Non-current - - - - - -
- - - - - -

- - - - - -

- - - - - -

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - - -

- Current

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

46.64

555.86

967.87

5,469.85

47.01

446.30

7,533.53

146.93

81.05

1,041.10

1,291.41

2,560.49

# Fair value of !nancial assets and liablities measured at amortised cost is not materially different from the
amortised cost. Further, impact of time value of money is not signi!cant for the !nancial instruments
classi!ed as current.Accordingly, the fair value has not been disclosed seperately.

46.64

555.86

967.87

5,469.85

47.01

446.30

7,533.53

146.93

81.05

1,041.10

1,291.41

2,560.49
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# Fair value of !nancial assets and liablities measured at amortised cost is not materially different from the
amortised cost. Further, impact of time value of money is not signi!cant for the !nancial instruments classi!ed as
current.Accordingly, the fair value has not been disclosed seperately.

Types of inputs are as under:

Input Level I (Directly Observable) : which includes quoted prices in active markets for identical assets such as
quoted price for an equity security on Security Exchanges.

Input Level II (Indirectly Observable) : which includes prices in active markets for similar assets such as
quoted price for similar assets in active markets, valuation multiple derived from prices in observed transactions
involving similar businesses, etc.

Input Level III (Unobservable): which includes management's own assumptions for arriving at a fair value such
as projected cash #ows used to value a business, etc.

B. Measurement of fair values

i) Valuation techniques and signi"cant unobservable inputs

Since there are no !nancial instruments measured at Fair Value, this is not relevant.

ii) Transfers between Levels I and II

Since there are no !nancial instruments measured at Fair Value, this is not relevant.

iii) Level III fair values

There are no items in Level III fair values.

C. Financial risk management

The Company has a well-de!ned risk management framework. The Board of Directors of the Company
has adopted a Risk Management Policy. The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from
!nancial instruments:

▪ Credit risk ;

▪ Liquidity risk ; and

▪ Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors evaluate and exercise independent control over
the entire process of market risk management. The board also recommends risk management objectives and
policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the

49th Annual Report

2020-21

As at March 31, 2020

Carrying amount Fair value#

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 - Level 2 - Level 3 - Total

Cost Quoted Significant Significant

price in observable unobser-

active inputs vable

markets inputs

Financial Assets

Loans

- Current - - - - - -

Trade receivables - - - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -

Other bank balances - - - - - -

Other financial assets

- Non-current - - - - - -

- Current - - - - - -

Total Financial Assets - - - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

- Non-current - - - - - -
- - - - - -

- - - - - -

- - - - - -

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - - -

- Current

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

51.30

447.22

538.84

4,386.35

51.91

172.40

5,648.02

186.31

73.18

835.78

1,144.34

2,239.61

51.30

447.22

538.84

4,386.35

51.91

172.40

5,648.02

186.31

73.18

835.78

1,144.34

2,239.61
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Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to re#ect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the audit committee.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counter party to a !nancial instrument will fail to perform or fail to pay
amounts due causing !nancial loss to the company. The potential activities where credit risks may arise
include from cash and cash equivalents and security deposits or other deposits and principally from credit
exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The maximum credit exposure associated with
!nancial assets is equal to the carrying amount. Details of the credit risk speci!c to the company along with
relevant mitigation procedures adopted have been enumerated below:

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is in#uenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may in#uence the credit risk of its customer base.
Majority of the customers have been associated with the company for a considerable period of time.
Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed regularly.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on
that date to identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. The company reviews
the receivables in light of their historical payment patterns and adjusts the same to estimate the expected loss
on account of credit worthiness of the customer or delay in payments leading to loss of time value of money.

As at the end of the reporting periods, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by
geographic region was as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

India 395.30

Overseas 51.92

Age of Receivables (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Not Due

0-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-180 days

> 180 days

The company does not have any concentration of credit risk as the customers / dealers are widely
dispersed. Receivables from any single customer / dealer does not exceed 10% of the total sales.

Impairment

As at the end of the reporting periods, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was
as follows:

The above receivables which are past due but not impaired are assessed on case-to-case basis. The
instances pertain to third party customers which have a proven creditworthiness record. Management is of
the view that these !nancial assets are not impaired as there has not been any adverse change in credit
quality and are envisaged as recoverable based on the historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis
of customer credit risk, including underlying customers’credit ratings, if they are available. Consequently, no
additional provision has been created on account of expected credit loss on the receivables. There are no
other classes of !nancial assets that are past due but not impaired. The provision for impairment of trade
receivables, movement of which has been provided below, is not signi!cant / material. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

300.24

134.64

1.59

9.95

0.80

-

533.87

21.99

455.75

99.33

0.72

0.05

0.01

-



81

N
o

te
s

to
th

e
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l

S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

Movements in Expected Credit Loss Allowance:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year -

Movements in allowance 5.58

5.58

Other "nancial assets

Other !nancial assets includes loan to employees, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balance, etc. Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits are placed with banks having good
reputation and past track record with adequate credit rating. The amounts for other !nancial assets is not
material and hence, exposure to credit risk is not considered to be signi!cant.

(ii) Liquidity iskr

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter dif!culty in meeting the obligations associated
with its !nancial liabilities that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or other !nancial asset. The
Company’s !nancial planning has ensured, as far as possible, that there is suf!cient liquidity to meet the
liabilities whenever due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash #ows. The Company’s liquidity management policy involves periodic reviews of cash #ow
projections and considering the level of liquid assets necessary, monitoring balance sheet, liquidity ratios
against internal and external regulatory requirements.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of !nancial liabilities at the reporting date. The
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of
netting agreements. (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2021 Carrying Contractual maturities

amount

Total Less than 1-2 years 2-5 years More than

12 months 5 years

Trade payables - - -

Other !nancial liabilities - -

Unhedged Exposures
Foreign

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Currency
Foreign Reporting Foreign Reporting

Denomination
Currency Currency Currency Currency

(Amounts in (Amounts in

INR Lakhs) INR Lakhs)

Trade Receivable USD

Trade Payable USD

Net Foreign Currency Exposure (Asset - Liability)

Trade Receivable JPY

Trade Payable JPY

Net Foreign Currency Exposure (Asset - Liability)

68,871.35

3,38,985.80

(2,70,114.45)

-

18,68,640.00

(18,68,640.00)

51.92

255.55

(203.63)

-

13.02

(13.02)

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates –
will affect the Company’s income. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive !nancial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and debt. The Company does not enter
into any derivatives.

(a) Currency Risk

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company has exposure of receivables
and payables in foreign currency (USD). However, the exposure is not signi!cant looking at the present
business of the Company.

1,041.10

1,519.39 1372.46 146.93

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

49th Annual Report

2020-21

-
5.58

5.58

March 31, 2020 Carrying Contractual maturities

amount

Total Less than 1-2 years 2-5 years More than

12 months 5 years

Trade payables - - -

Other !nancial liabilities - -
835.78 835.78 835.78

1,403.83 1,403.83 1,217.52 186.31

1,041.10

1,519.39

1,041.10

29,911.21

265,234.16

(235,322.96)

-

3,992,520.00

(3,992,520.00)

21.99

194.96

(172.97)

-

26.49

(26.49)
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Effect in Rupees Pro"t / (Loss) Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2021

USD (3% movement)

JPY (3% movement)

The following signi!cant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

Sensitivity analysis based on Net Foreign Currency Exposure provided herein above:

37 Related party disclosures

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 24) are given below :

Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship

Average rate Year - end spot rate

For year ended
31 March 2021

For year ended
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

1 USD 70.89 75.39

100 JPY 65.23 69.65

(5.19) 5.19 (3.88) 3.88

(0.79) 0.79 (0.59) 0.59

(b) Interest rate risk

There are no !nancial assets or !nancial liabilities which are at #oating interest rate. Accordingly,
there is no interest risk.

3 . Capital anagement6 m

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company. The Company
manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through an optimum mix of debt and equity within the overall capital structure. The
Company's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company considering the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

Panasonic Corporation
Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd
P.T. Panasonic Gobel Energy Indonesia
Panasonic Energy Tanzania Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Energy Thailand Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Peruana SA
Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.
Panasonic Procurement Asia Paci!c
(Division of Panasonic Asia Paci!c Pte. Ltd.)
Panasonic Energy ( Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Hong Kong Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Procurement (China) Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Energy (Wuxi) Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Do Brasil Limitada
Relo Panasonic Excel International Co. Ltd
Panasonic Energy Poland S A
Panasonic Life Solutions India P Ltd
Panasonic Marketing Middle East & Africa FZE
Panasonic Industry (China) Co Ltd
(Formerly: Panasonic Indl Dev Sales (CH) Co. Ltd.
Panasonic Finance Asia- a division of Panasonic Asia Paci!c Pte. Ltd.
Panasonic Appliances Air-Conditioning Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
Name changed to    Panasonic Procurement Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (PPMY)
Panasonic Corporation Industrial Solution Co

Holding company
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

73.50

66.36

74.21

70.02

Effect in Rupees Pro"t / (Loss) Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2020

USD (3% movement)

JPY (3% movement)

(6.11) 6.11 (4.57) 4.57

(0.39) 0.39 (0.29) 0.29



Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Mayur Swadia

Mr. Atul Dalmia

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Transactions with related parties during the year (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction Holding Fellow
Subsidiary

Key Management
Total

Company Personnel

Sale of products

Panasonic Peruana SA

Panasonic Energy Poland S A

Panasonic Do Brasil Limitada

Panasonic Life Solutions India P Ltd

Panasonic AVC Network India Co Ltd

Panasonic Industry (China) Co Ltd (Formerly:
Panasonic Indl Dev Sales (CH) Co. Ltd.

Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Sale of Machinery

Panasonic Peruana SA

Dividends paid

Panasonic Corporation

Chairman and Managing Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Non Executive Director

Non Executive Director

(w.e.f 01 April 2020)

(w.e.f 01 April 2020)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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91.75

(153.27)

36.12

(70.09)

1.53

-

1.11

-

-

(0.14)

-

(3.27)

28.95

(54.10)

24.04

(25.67)

-

(19.83)

-

(19.83)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

174.17

(174.17)

174.17

(174.17)

91.75

(153.27)

36.12

(70.09)

1.53

-

1.11

-

-

(0.14)

-

(3.27)

28.95

(54.10)

24.04

(25.67)

-

(19.83)

-

(19.83)

174.17

(174.17)

174.17

(174.17)

Raw material purchases

Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd..

Panasonic Procurement Asia Paci!c

-

-

-

-

-

-

875.00

(852.10)

781.30

(751.44)

93.70

(100.66)

-

-

-

-

-

-

875.00

(852.10)

781.30

(751.44)

93.70

(100.66)
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Transactions with related parties during the year (continued) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction Holding Fellow
Subsidiary

Key Management
Total

Company Personnel

Purchase of traded goods

Panasonic Energy (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Panasonic Corporation

Panasonic Hong Kong Co. Ltd.

Panasonic Energy Thailand Co. Ltd.

PT Panasonic Gobel Energy Indonesia

Purchase of Machinery

Panasonic Corporation

Purchase of spares

Panasonic Corporation

Royalty and brand fees paid / payable

Panasonic Corporation

Legal and professional charges - Management

fees paid / payable

Panasonic Corporation

Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Panasonic Finance Asia

Reimbursement of expenses paid / payable

Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Panasonic Corporation

Relo Panasonic Excel International Co. Ltd.

Reimbursement of brand building expenses

received / receivable

Panasonic Corporation

890.02

(595.47)

-

-

890.02

(595.47)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(22.68)

-

(22.68)

13.25

(3.05)

13.25

(3.05)

397.43

(346.95)

397.43

(346.95)

-

(2.00)

-
(2.00)

-

-

-

-

86.83

(179.02)

-

-

86.83

(179.02)

-
-

599.20

(666.32)

599.20

(666.32)

538.34

(392.43)

75.75

(71.02)

-

-

224.85

(61.51)

-

(135.57)

237.74

(124.33)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

33.05

(28.56)

-
-

32.61

(28.05)

0.44

(0.51)

2.00

(3.93)

-

(3.93)

-

-

2.00
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

1,428.36

(987.90)

75.75

(71.02)

890.02

(595.47)

224.85

(61.51)

-

(135.57)

237.74

(124.33)

-

(22.68)

-

(22.68)

13.25

(3.05)

13.25

(3.05)

397.43

(346.95)

397.43

(346.95)

33.05

(30.56)

-
(2.00)

32.61

(28.05)

0.44

(0.51)

88.83

(182.94)

-

(3.93)

86.83

(179.02)

2.00
-

599.20

(666.32)

599.20

(666.32)

Remuneration paid / payable to KMP *

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

-

-

-

-

-

-

131.27

(213.37)

-

(149.81)

131.27

(63.56)

-

-

-

-

-

-

131.27

(213.37)

-

(149.81)

131.27

(63.56)
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Transactions with related parties during the year (continued) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction Holding Fellow
Subsidiary

Key Management
Total

Company Personnel

Sitting fees paid / payable to KMP

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Mayur Swadia

Mr. Atul Dalmia

Commission paid / payable to KMP

Ms. Geeta Goradia

Mr. Mayur Swadia

Mr. Atul Dalmia

Mr. Hideyuki Okunaga

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5.40

(7.00)

2.00

(2.40)

2.00

(2.40)

1.40

(2.20)

16.03

(7.80)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(1.69)

3.21

-

* Includes INR 55.97 Lakhs ( Previous year: INR  134.55 Lakhs) reimbursed to Panasonic Corporation for remuneration

paid/payable to Mr.Tadasuke Hosoya during the year.

Balances as at year end (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Holding Fellow
Subsidiary

Key Management
Total

Company Personnel

Current "nancial assets - Trade Receivables

Panasonic Peruna S A

Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Panasonic Energy Poland S A

Panasonic Industry (China) Co Ltd

Current "nancial assets - Others

Panasonic Corporation

Current "nancial liabilities - Trade Payables

30.85
(57.12)

15.98

(34.10)

8.86

(5.20)

0.64

-

5.36

(17.82)

-

-
-

-

66.81

49th Annual Report

2020-21

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5.40

(7.00)

2.00

(2.40)

2.00

(2.40)

1.40

(2.20)

16.03

(7.80)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(2.03)

3.21

(1.69)

3.21

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

423.22

(159.80)

423.22

(159.80)

331.89

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

30.85
(57.12)

15.98

(34.10)

8.86

(5.20)

0.64

-

5.36

(17.82)

423.22

(159.80)

423.22

(159.80)

398.70

Panasonic Corporation

Panasonic Carbon India Co. Ltd.

(219.18)

331.89

(219.18)

-

-

(317.50)

331.89

(219.18)

.27 62

(43.90)

(98.33)

-

-

27.62

(43.90)

-

-

-

-

-
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Balances as at year end (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Holding Fellow
Subsidiary

Key Management
Total

Company Personnel

Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Panasonic Energy Sanghai Co. Ltd.

Panasonic Procurement Asia Paci!c

Panasonic Hongkong Co Ltd

PT Panasonic Gobel Energy Indonesia

Current "nancial liabilities - Others

Mr. Mikio Morikawa

Mr. Tadasuke Hosoya

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.65

(5.04)

4.20

(9.58)

-

(13.02)

9.20

(16.76)

14.14

(10.03)

2.39
(4.08)

-

(2.01)

2.39

(2.06)

3 . Employee bene"ts8

In accordance with the stipulations of the Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Bene!ts”, the
disclosures of employee bene!ts as de!ned in the IndianAccounting Standard are given below:

c pDe"ned ontribution lans

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to de!ned contribution retirement bene!t plan for
qualifying employees. The provident fund is administered by the trust owned and managed by the Company.
Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a speci!ed percentage of payroll cost to the retirement
bene!t plan to fund the bene!ts.

The provident fund plan is operated by the “Panasonic Energy India Company Limited Employees Provident
Fund Trust” (the “Trust”). Eligible employees receive bene!ts from the said Provident Fund Trust which is a
de!ned contribution plan. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident
Fund Plan equal to a speci!ed percentage of the covered employee's salary. The minimum interest rate
payable by the Trust to the bene!ciaries every year is being noti!ed by the Government. The Company has an
obligation to make good the short fall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the
noti!ed interest rate.

The Company recognized INR 209.17 Lakhs (Previous year: INR 167.82 Lakhs) for provident fund
contributions

b pDe"ned ene"t lans

1) Gratuity

15 days salary (Basic + RA) for each completed year of service. Vesting period is 5 years and the payment is
at actual on retirement, resignation, termination, disablement or death.

Scheme is funded with LIC. The liability for gratuity as below is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The Company makes contribution to LIC for gratuity bene!ts according to the Payment of GratuityAct, 1972.

The Company recognizes the liability towards the gratuity at each Balance Sheet date.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the de!ned bene!t obligation for gratuity was carried out at 31 March
2021 by an actuary. The present value of the de!ned bene!t obligations and the related current service cost
and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of bene!t entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the !nal obligation. Scheme is funded through LIC.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Salary Risk, investment risk, liquidity
risk, legislative risk and market risk.

2.39
(4.08)

-

(2.01)

2.39

(2.06)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.65

(5.04)

4.20

(9.58)

-

(13.02)

9.20

(16.76)

14.14

(10.03)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Salary Risk

Investment Risk

Liquidity Risk

Legislative Risk

Market Risk

Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an
increase in obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets
certi!ed by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In
such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate.
this can result in wide #uctuations in the net liability or funded status if there are
signi!cant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy,
accumulate signi!cant level of bene!ts. If some of such employees resign/retire from
the company there can be strain on the cash#ow.

It is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to
change in the regulation. The government may amend the payment of Gratuity Act
thus requiring the companies to pay higher bene!ts to the employees. This will directly
affect the present value of the De!ned bene!t Obligation and the same will have to be
recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

It is a collective term for risks that are related to changes and #uctuations of the
!nancial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount
rate. The discount rate re#ects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate
leads to decrease in de!ned bene!t obligation of the plan bene!ts & vice versa. this
assumption depends on the yields on the corporate bonds and hence the valuation of
liability is exposed to #uctuations in the yields at the valuation date.

No other post-retirement bene!ts are provided to employees.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 h 2Marc 020

Gratuity

Discount rate (%)

Salary escalation rate (%)

Attrition rate (%)

For Service 2 years and below

For Service 3 years to 4 years

For Service 5 years and above

Expected rate of return on plan assets

6.87%

6.00%

21.50%

2.25%

2.00%

6.87%

49th Annual Report
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6.80%

6.00%

21.50%

2.25%

2.00%

6.87%
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars As at As at

No. 31 March 2021 31 h 20Marc 20

I) Reconciliation in present value of obligations (PVO) –

de"ned bene"t obligation:

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / losses

Bene!ts paid

PVO at the beginning of the year

PVO at end of the year

II) Change in fair value of assets:

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain/(losses)

Contributions by the employer

Bene!ts paid

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

III) Reconciliation of Present value of obligation and fair value of

assets:

PVO at end of period

Fair Value of planned assets at end of year

Funded status

Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet

IV) Expenses recognised in Statement of Pro"t and Loss

Current Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Components of de"ned bene"t costs recognised in

Employee Bene"t expenses

Expenses recognised in Other Comprenhensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments

Return on Plan Assets excluding amount included in net
interest cost

Total

V) Category of assets as at 31st March:

Insurer Managed Funds (100%)

The above information is certi!ed by an actuary.

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity and  the amounts recognized in the Company’s

!nancial statements as at 31 March 2021:

43.23

78.22

177.18

(142.19)

1,017.21

1,173.65

79.41

(10.13)

25.00

(142.19)

1,032.70

984.79

1,173.65

984.79

(188.8 )6

(188.8 )6

43.23

78.22

(77.85)

43.60

177.18

10.13

187.31

100%

Categories of Plan Assets as a% of total Plan Assets:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 rch 20Ma 20

Central Govt Security

Other Approved Security

State Govt Security

Ncd/Bonds

Equity

18.61%

0.01%

52.65%

22.77%

5.96%

51.93

80.63

28.02

(251.72)

1,173.65

1,082.51

67.65

(7.42)

190.00

(251.72)

984.79

983.31

1,082.51

983.31

(99.20)

(99.20)

51.93

80.63

(67.65)

64.90

28.02

7.42

35.44

100%

20.63%

0.01%

46.91%

22.77%

9.68%
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Sensitivity analysis as on 31 March 202 (for Gratuity)1
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Gratuity 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Projected Bene"t Obligation on Current Assumptions

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover

1,173.64

(65.55)

74.56

74.47

(66.65)

3.80

(4.26)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the de!ned
bene!t obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated. Sensitivity due to mortality & withdrawals are not material &
hence impact of change not calculated.

Maturity nalysis of rojected ene"t bligation are as under:a p b o
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Gratuity 31 March 2021 31 h 2Marc 020

Projected Bene"ts Payable in Future Years From the Date of
Reporting

1st Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Following Year

4th Following Year

5th Following Year

Sum of years 6th To 10th Year

Sum of years 11 & above Year

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Expenses recognised for the year ended (included in Note 26) 31 Ma c 2r h 021 31 h 2Marc 020

i) De!ned bene!t obligation

ii) Fund

iii) Net asset / (liability)

iv) Charge to the Statement of Pro!t and Loss during the year

The a sumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of the interest rate guarantee under deterministics

approach are:

31 March 2021 31 h 2Marc 020

i) Mortalitiy rate (2006-08) ultimate table Indian Assured Lives Mortality Ultimate

ii) Withdrawal rates 5.00%

iii) Rate of discount 6.8 %0

iv) Expected rate of interest 8.50%

iv) Retirement age 60 Years

vi) Guaranteed rate of interest 8.50%

242.90

98.92

155.77

67.25

64.08

417.87

946.49

2) Provident undf

The Company has established an Employee Provident Fund Trust administered by the Company to
which both the employee and employer make monthly contribution. The Company's contribution to the
Provident Fund for all employees is charged to Statement of Pro!t and Loss. In case of any liability
arising due to shortfall between the return from its investments and the administered interest rate, the
same is required to be provided by the Company. The actuary has provided an actuarial valuation and
indicated that the interest shortfall liability is INR Nil. The Company has contributed the following
amounts towards Provident Fund during the respective period ended:

4,838.57

5,030.62

192.05

167.82

5.00%

6.87%

8 50%.

60 Years

8 50%.
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1,082.49

(69.18)

78.91

78.76

70.29

3.50

(3.97)

160.84

97.54

73.26

70.51

80.42

487.25

976.87

4,953.20

5,178.78

225.58

209.17
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39 Tax expense (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 rch 2Ma 020

Statement of Pro"t and Loss

(a) Current tax

Current tax on pro!t during the year

Total Current tax expense

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax (credit) attributable to origination and reversal
of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Pro"t

and Loss

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Pro!t before tax

Current tax at the statutory tax rate of 25.168%
(31 March 2020: 25.168%)

Tax effects of:

Adjustment of tax expense relating to earlier periods

Tax impact on expense not allowable as deduction under
income tax (net)

Impact due to change in tax rate enacted for subsequent year

Tax expense

40. Leases

As a lessee:

The Company’s signi!cant leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of of!ce / residential premises & IT
equipment. Leases typically run in a range from 11 months to 9 years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date. The Company previously used to classify leases as operating or !nance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred signi!cantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset to the Company.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" with effect from 1 April 2019 i.e. date of transition with
modi!ed prospective approach. The Company has elected to account for short-term and low value leases
using the practical expedient as given in the standard. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease
liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in pro!t or loss. The 5 years
government bond rate of 6.93% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the
date of initial application. Company's short term and low value consists of of!ce premises taken on lease for a
period of 11 months which are renewable by mutual consent or mutually agreed terms. The aggregate of such
lease rentals are charged as "Rent".

The Company used following practical expedients when applying IndAS 116 :

- did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application;

- did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets;

- excluded initial direct costs from the measurementof the right-of-use assetat the date of initial application;and

- used hindsight when determining the lease term.

Accordingly, Right-of-Use asset and lease liability of INR 328.61 Lakhs has been recognised.

A. s p lAmount recognised in tatement of ro"t and  oss

Year ended Year ended
31 Ma c 2r h 021 31 rch 2Ma 020

Interest on lease liabilities

Amortisation of ROU Assets

Expenses relating to short term and low value leases charged as Rent

18.41

80.47

2.95

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

230.41

(73.19)

157.23

519.56

130.76

15.74

5.56

5.16

157.23

Other -

230.41368.42

368.42

(11.20)

357.22

1,398.58

351.99

(17.48)

22.40

-

0.31

357.22

25.87

65.52

0.97
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B. Amount recognised in the tatement of ash lowss c f

31 March 2021 31 rch 2Ma 020

Interest component

Lease component

18.41

69.13

C.     Maturity nalysis of  ease  iabilitiesa l l

31 Ma c 2r h 021 31 rch 2Ma 020

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted

Less than one year

One to !ve years

More than !ve years

Lease liabilities included in Balance Sheet

- Current

- Non Current

D.    Movement of ight of se ssetsr u a

Forming part of note to "Right of Use Assets" (refer note 5).

4 .1 Impact of COVID-19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted business around the globe. In many countries
including India, there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lock-down,
disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other
emergency measures.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next one year and of the
recoverability and carrying values of its assets comprising roperty, lant and quipment, intangible
assets, Trade Receivables, and Inventory as at the balance sheet date and has concluded that there is
no material adjustments required in the !nancial statements.

p p e

Management believes that it has considered all the possible impact of known events arising from
COVID -19 pandemic in the preparation of the !nancial Statements. However, the impact assessment
of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration.
The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

4 .2 Previous period !gures have been re-grouped /re-classi!ed wherever necessary, to con!rm to the
current period's classi!cation.

88.17

196.16

12.94

73.18

186.31

E.    Movement of  ease  iabilityl l

31 Ma c 2r h 021 31 rch 2Ma 020

Balance as at the beginning

Finance cost accrued

Payment of lease liabilities

Balance as at the end

328.61

18.41

(87.54)

259.48

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
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Addition

Deduction

-

-

259.48

79.41

(48.01)

25.87

(88.78)

227.97

25.87

62.91

93.53

157.42

-

81.05

146.93
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